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1 2 3 4
Progressive discusses business
strategies, goals and initiatives
openly. We feel no pressure
to ‘meet external earnings ex-
pectations’ and report results
as they are.

Progressive is currently the
only Fortune  company to
report results on a monthly
basis.The amount and level of
information is continually 
evaluated to improve relevance
and content value.

Progressive’s Core Values govern
our decisions and behaviors.
Living the Core Values enables
us to face problems head
on, admit mistakes and grow
stronger as a company.

Progressive publishes an annual
Report on Loss Reserving Practices,
disclosing how we establish
and evaluate claim reserves.We
invite owners and observers
to critique our approach, because
loss reserves drive pricing and
the quality of financial disclosure.

Up Front
Progressive seeks forthright and full disclosure in all
our business reporting. Our desire for transparency
demonstrates our belief that good decisions flow
from clear information.
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Progressive people receive quar-
terly business updates directly
from the , resulting in nu-
merous e-mails back to him
with suggestions, complaints and
kudos. Our Open Door policy
gives each employee access to
every level of management, to
discuss concerns or report an
issue, including the opportunity
to report anonymously through
a toll-free number.

Progressive knows that infor-
mation is power and provides
consumers with the informa-
tion they need to make informed
decisions. Progressive’s insur-
ance companies will give its rates
and the rates of other leading
companies. At progressive.com,
consumers see a ‘rate ticker’
documenting up-to-the-minute
rate comparisons.

Progressive believes that every-
one is entitled to have access
to his or her information. At 
personal.progressive.com, cus-
tomers can make payments,
check the status of a claim, make
changes to their policy and
more. Independent agents use
ForAgentsOnly.com to review
policy information or their com-
mission statement, and to par-
ticipate in a discussion forum.

Progressive wants ‘no secrets’
when it comes to how rates are
determined.That’s why we 
are testing a Personal Insurance
Credit Inquiry, to explain the
insurance credit score used in
many states.
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Transparency
Since the Progressive insurance organization began business in 1937, we have
been innovators—growing into new markets and pioneering new ways to meet
consumers’ needs. In 1956, Progressive Casualty Insurance Company was
founded to be among the first specialty underwriters of nonstandard auto insur-
ance. Today, The Progressive Corporation’s 69 subsidiaries and 2 affiliates make
competitive rates and 24-hour, in-person and online services available to drivers
throughout the United States. 
Progressive’s long-standing commitments to full disclosure, self-
examination, continuous improvement, timely reporting and
most importantly honesty, led us to the theme of ‘transparency’
for this year’s annual report. For Progressive,‘transparency’is not
a focus that merely attempts to follow, or even respond to, recent
trends in the world of business. Rather, it is an effort to illumi-
nate and articulate the way that we strive to run our company.

Artist John Coplans addresses our ‘transparency’ theme
through his honest and unflinching photographs. For a quarter
of a century, he has pursued the idea of self-examination
through photographing his own nude body. Coplans, now ,
made his first photographs when he was  years old. He is not
only an accomplished artist, but also an art historian, critic, the
founding editor of Artforum magazine, a museum director and
an important influence on art and ideas for the last half-century.
Coplans’work will now become part of Progressive’s growing
collection of contemporary art. For a brief history of Progres-
sive’s art collection, please visit art.progressive.com.
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2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

For the Year

Direct premiums written $ 9,665.7 $ 7,379.2 $ 6,402.1 $ 6,305.3 $ 5,451.3
Net premiums written 9,452.0 7,260.1 6,196.1 6,124.7 5,299.7
Net premiums earned 8,883.5 7,161.8 6,348.4 5,683.6 4,948.0
Total revenues 9,294.4 7,488.2 6,771.0 6,124.2 5,292.4

Net income $ 667.3 $ 411.4 $ 46.1 $ 295.2 $ 456.7
Reconciling items, after tax:

Net realized gains — — (11.0) (30.7) (7.4)
Net realized losses 51.1 72.7 — — —
Nonrecurring items — 1.4 20.3 2.2 —

Operating income1 $ 718.4 $ 485.5 $ 55.4 $ 266.7 $ 449.3

Per share–diluted
Net income $ 2.99 $ 1.83 $ .21 $ 1.32 $ 2.04
Operating income1 $ 3.22 $ 2.16 $ .25 $ 1.19 $ 2.01

Underwriting margin 7.6% 4.8% (4.4)% 1.7% 8.4%

At Year-End

Consolidated
shareholders’ equity $ 3,768.0 $ 3,250.7 $ 2,869.8 $ 2,752.8 $ 2,557.1

Common Shares outstanding 218.0 220.3 220.6 219.3 217.6
Book value per share $ 17.28 $ 14.76 $ 13.01 $ 12.55 $ 11.75
Market capitalization $ 10,819.3 $ 10,958.6 $ 7,616.8 $ 5,345.4 $ 12,279.7
Return on average

shareholders’ equity 19.3% 13.5% 1.7% 10.9% 19.3%
Market share2 5.9% 5.1% 4.7% 4.8% 4.2%

1-Year 3-Year 5-Year

Stock Price Appreciation (Depreciation)3

Progressive (.1)% 27.0% 4.7%
S&P 500 (22.0)% (14.5)% (.6)%

1Defined as net income adjusted for the after-tax effect of net realized gains and losses on securities and nonrecurring items.
This is a non-GAAP disclosure. For a complete discussion of operating income, including a description of the nonrecurring
items, see Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the Ten-Year Summary—GAAP Consolidated Operating Results, included
in the Company’s Annual Report to Shareholders, which is included as an Appendix to the Company’s 2003 Proxy Statement.

2Represents Progressive’s Personal Lines business; based on U.S. personal auto insurance market net premiums written of
an estimated $141.0 billion, $127.8 billion, $119.6 billion, $118.6 billion and $117.3 billion for 2002, 2001, 2000, 1999 and 1998,
respectively, as reported by A.M. Best Company Inc. 

3Represents average annual compounded rate of increase (decrease); assumes dividend reinvestment.

All share and per share amounts were adjusted for the April 22, 2002, 3-for-1 stock split.

(millions–except per share amounts)

Five-Year Financial Highlights
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The structure of this report has
changed. We will now provide
an easy reading summary of the
year along with financial high-
lights but not attempt to repro-
duce in exact form the contents
of our complete financial state-
ments, which are included as a
companion piece. I hope you
will find this format, along with
its electronic equivalents, respon-
sive to your needs.
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Letter to Shareholders 

We had a great year.

In my letter to you last year, I reported we had
improved profits but policy growth was just
beginning to gain momentum. I predicted that
if this trend were to continue, we would look
forward to, and felt prepared for, the second
phase of the cycle—profitable growth.

I am delighted to report we were prepared
and did take full advantage of our positioning
and market conditions, growing 30% in net
premiums written, achieving an underwriting
margin of 7.6% and posting record net income
of $667.3 million.
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Underwriting Leverage:
Grow as fast as possible subject to achieving a
 calendar year combined ratio.

Target premiums-to-surplus ratio at :.

Maintain adequate loss reserves.

ROE = {[ UNDERWRITING MARGIN * ( )] + [ INVESTMENT YIELD1

* (1+ )] – } * (1– )INTEREST EXP
SHE

NPE
SHE

LIAB
SHE

EFFECTIVE
TAX RATE

Financial Leverage:
Maintain debt ratio
between % and %
of total capital.

>> >

Underwriting Margin:
 calendar year 
combined ratio.

Investment Yield:
Manage on a total 
return basis.

Portfolio asset allocation
of % fixed income
and % equity.

Manage interest rate,
credit, prepayment and
concentration risk.

Note Formula was derived from the work of Dr. J. Robert Ferrari and his paper
entitled “The Relationship of Underwriting, Investment, Leverage, and Exposure 
to Total Return on Owners’ Equity,” and is presented  for illustrative purposes only.

1Represents the sum of investment income and net realized gains/losses on secu-
rities, all as a % of average total assets.

ROE: Return on Average Shareholders’ Equity
NPE: Net Premiums Earned
SHE: Average Shareholders’ Equity
LIAB: Average Liabilities

Progressive’s Financial Goals and Policies

Personal Lines Net Premiums Written Growth
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Objectives and Policies
Focus on our goals, and a clear understanding of prior-
ity among them, is key to our success. In 2002, we
achieved all three of our business goals: 
Achieve a 4% Underwriting Profit on All Products and Segments. We at-
tained a .% margin.This is the most important goal, and super-
cedes our growth goal.The  investment climate demonstrated
the importance of our continuing focus on underwriting profit.

Our product manager structure is central to quick and effec-
tive response to local market conditions. In , we performed
over  rate and program revisions designed to maintain rate ad-
equacy in the  regulatory markets we serve. Product managers
for both the Agent and Direct distribution channels, typically
managing one or two states, assume significant profit and loss
responsibility and their collective actions resulted in  of 

markets operating profitably in personal lines for the year—
most at or better than our target % underwriting profit goal.
Grow as Fast as Possible... Our net premiums written grew %.
For perspective, in an industry with over  insurance com-
pany groups, our written premium growth of . billion in
 exceeded the total auto insurance premium of the 

largest writer of auto insurance in .

Our growth goal, restated last year, is to grow as fast as possible
constrained only by our profit objective and our ability to 
provide high quality service.We are acutely aware of the down-
side when growth outpaces ability to maintain consistent 
quality. We will always constrain growth when we believe we
are close to that threshold. Matching capacity to growth po-
tential became a central theme for .
15% Return on Shareholders’ Equity, Net of Inflation. We beat this goal
in  with a .% return. During , we evaluated all of
our business goals and this one in particular.Taken in concert
with our published financial policies, which govern the use of
operating leverage (i.e., underwriting capacity), financial lever-
age and investment management, return on equity is largely 
an outcome of the first two goals—Underwriting Profit and
Growth.Therefore, going forward we will state Progressive’s 
financial goals as those for Underwriting Profit and Growth.
We will provide a companion set of financial policies covering
underwriting, investing and financing.These financial goals and
policies are structured to maximize long-term shareholder value.
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More Disclosure  
After our first full year of reporting monthly underwriting
results, we are confident we have achieved a new and
constructive level of reporting detail. We took steps to
enhance the quality of information provided in our quar-
terly releases by adding an accident and calendar year
reconciliation detailing the source and timing of reserve
changes. Additionally, we began offering more detail
about our policies-in-force, specifically highlighting our
commercial auto insurance business— our fastest
growing unit in 2002.
Accident and calendar year reconciliation is critically impor-
tant for an accurate assessment of any auto insurer and speaks
directly to the quality of earnings that are reported in the some-
what artificial, but convenient, structure of the calendar. In
June, we again published our Report on Loss Reserving Practices.
In keeping with the theme of this report, ‘transparency,’ we 
attempt to share with our owners and observers critical infor-
mation used to run the business. Monthly reporting highlights
events and monthly variations that would otherwise be less clear
in quarterly reporting.

Market Conditions and Our View of the Future
Throughout the course of the year, we observed differ-
ent competitors withdraw, constrain new business, file
for double-digit rate increases and even become insol-
vent. These actions were caused by inadequate prior
price levels, new reinsurance market restrictions and
poor investment returns. For some, conditions were ex-
acerbated by poor homeowner insurance results. While
many of these actions were taken by insurers with
smaller market shares, even the market share leader
took significant corrective action to address poor results.
We benefited from these conditions. 
The market is consolidating; market share of the top  com-
panies has grown to about %, up from % in, with only
 companies with more than % market share in . The
demands to develop superior technology solutions, costs to build
a meaningful consumer brand, and challenges to provide dis-
tinctive and valuable service to policyholders will prove to be too
high for some, maybe many, and may lead to even more con-
solidation. Success in the auto insurance sector will increasingly
require scale advantages and consistent execution of a superior
business model at low cost and high value to the consumer.

Progressive’s future will be shaped by our continued invest-
ment in technology solutions, superiority in claims, advance-
ment of pricing and segmentation science, discipline in cost
control and building of a trusted consumer brand. Our focus
will remain on auto insurance. At .% share of the ..personal
auto insurance market, we feel no major market constraint to
sustained growth over the next decade.
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Insurance Operations 
Progressive’s Personal Lines written premium in-
creased 29% to $8.4 billion for 2002, with a 22% increase
in policies-in-force and a GAAP combined ratio of 92.5.
A welcome feature of the year, based on renewal and
attrition trends, was a significant extension of our policy
life estimates for most lines of business and within
each of our distribution channels. This change in our
estimates comes from a combination of market condi-
tions, increasing use of electronic payment plans, and
a growing culture and understanding of customer
preservation. Our results also reflect a year with relatively
few catastrophes and an unexpected, and perhaps
exceptional, drop in claim frequency.
Agent business written premium increased % and auto poli-
cies-in-force increased by %, with a combined ratio of .,
building on and maintaining the rate adequacy achieved the
previous year.

Our technology gives our independent agents electronic 
access to their Progressive customers’ data, allowing them to 
provide the quality service their customers expect in a more 
responsive manner. We made considerable progress this year in
key initiatives directed at increasing quote accuracy at time of
delivery by validating data in real time, increasing policy changes
made directly by agents (now over % of agent policy change
requests), and eliminating paper files and reports.

With our commitment to expanding technology and improving
workflows that assist our agents, we have attained an expense
ratio comparable to or lower than any competitor who distrib-
utes through agents.

Direct business written premium increased % and auto
policies-in-force increased by %, with a combined ratio of
., as we built on our investment in this alternative way for
consumers to shop. Our efforts have focused on advancing our
acquisition science (ensuring we harvest the appropriate volume
and mix of business for all advertising expenditures), improving
the customer experience, and, where viable, expanding our ad-
vertising and media modes to reach more potential customers.

Media costs were very favorable in , and while we expect
to see them firm somewhat going forward, we feel comfortable
with the outlook. All advertising costs, including development
of new creative campaigns and media placements, are expensed
as incurred. During the course of the year, we further devel-
oped our High Expectations television advertising campaign that
promotes comparison-shopping and the use of the Internet for
quoting and buying.

For a growing number of consumers, the Internet provides
a very convenient way to buy or quote insurance and this
activity is a catalyst to our growth. I expect this trend to con-
tinue and feel terrific about our leadership in online sales and
service functionality.

Special Lines insurance products, primarily motorcycles,
motor homes and watercraft, had a tremendous year with close
to % growth in policies-in-force. We are the market share
leader in motorcycle insurance with approximately % share.
Even so, we are confident we can leverage our strong reputa-
tion in this line to capture greater share.
Commercial Auto business had a milestone year, surpassing one
billion dollars in written premium, a % plus increase, %
increase in policies-in-force, and a combined ratio of ..
The combination of conditions similar to those seen in the pri-
vate passenger auto insurance market and our own pricing 
adequacy allowed us to provide our agents with consistent
product availability when others were forced to constrain. Our
current and future success in this line depends on our continued
focus on the market segments we understand, disciplined pric-
ing and excellent claims service.This year’s increased reporting
on this part of our business highlights its ongoing importance.
Claims. Nowhere is the issue of matching capacity to growth
potential more critical than in claims management. Our claims
management agenda in  was all about execution on three
fronts: building capacity, improving quality and development
of a new method of handling physical damage losses.
Building Claim Capacity – Because there is no substitute for training
and experience in claims resolution, we aggressively hired new
claim representatives in advance of need. During , we hired
and trained over , external new claim representatives for a
net increase of over ,. A soft employment market afforded



Segway In , Segway 
announced the consumer avail-
ability of the Segway™Human
Transporter (), the world’s first
dynamically stabilized, self-bal-
ancing transportation device, and
plans to begin shipping units in
. I make no projections on
the future impact of the Segway
, but as an owner, I can tell
you it’s an eye-opening experi-
ence. It seemed only fitting that
Progressive should be a part of
this transportation innovation.
To that end, with Segway we have
created the first insurance prod-
uct for Segway  owners.
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us high-quality, high-energy adjuster trainees;we averaged  hire
for every  applicants. In addition, we provided almost ,

hours of advanced training to more experienced claims people.
Improving Quality – Our internally audited file quality results and 
performance metrics in claims all met expectations and generally
got better.Through greater focus on file ownership, account-
ability and customer service, we measurably improved our claim
handling quality against standards set such that if we saw the
exact same claim again we would be satisfied if we handled it the
same way. We are not easily satisfied and still have opportu-
nities for continued performance improvement, but are delighted
by the results and encouraged by the opportunity.
Setting a New Standard for Vehicle Claims Repair – In last year’s letter,
I presented an example of a better consumer experience and
outlined our test plan to create it. We want to reform the vehi-
cle repair process, increase consumer satisfaction, increase our
productivity, and improve the cycle time and quality of repair.
I am happy to report our prototypes met our acceptance crite-
ria and we have expanded to seven sites with  more planned
for .This initiative will profoundly change claims handling
and become a key element of our consumer brand.

Achieving balanced execution and success on all three initia-
tives, while reducing our loss adjustment expense, was a standout
performance when we needed it most.

Looking forward to , we remain very conscious of the
balance between growth and qualified capacity. We like what we
see so far and will remain obsessive about trying to get it right.

We aspire to be recognized as the pre-eminent consumer fran-
chise in auto insurance and understand that this requires an ex-
traordinary commitment to service delivery. During , we
improved in all areas of customer service and focused on greater
integration between product design and service capability. We
encourage and seek consumer feedback and we get much 
that is truly heartfelt and encouraging. Our surveys all show 
improving customer service, but valid complaints and certain
survey data tells us our task is still far from done.
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Capital and Investment Management 
Progressive chooses to take risk in, and expects com-
mensurate returns from, underwriting auto insurance.
Thus, the primary objective of capital management is to
always have sufficient capital to support all the insur-
ance we can profitably underwrite and service. We man-
age investments to reflect our broader financial goals
and shareholder value by focusing on total return (re-
curring investment income and realized and unrealized
gains/losses on securities).
We posted a fully taxable equivalent total return on our invest-
ment portfolio of .% for the year. Our asset allocation of
approximately % in fixed income and % in common equi-
ties is designed to optimize portfolio diversification.The two
asset classes produced widely divergent results. Common stock
holdings returned -.% while fixed income assets produced a
return of .%.We modestly reduced our interest rate risk by
lowering the portfolio duration by half a year to around . years.

In a year when preservation of shareholder capital was a chal-
lenge to business in general, we are happy to end the year with
shareholders’ equity of . billion (up over half a billion) and
a strong and liquid balance sheet. We ended  with . bil-
lion in invested assets, up from . billion last December. Our
portfolio grew due to strong cash flows from operations, invest-
ment returns and proceeds from a  million debt issuance in
November . After a difficult year for the capital markets, we
enter  in a very strong position with the necessary capital (at
an attractive cost) that we need to fund our immediate growth.

In March , we announced a : stock split consistent with
our policy of splitting the stock if the price exceeds  for a
reasonable period of time.

We also reaffirmed our position that we would repurchase
shares when our capital position, view of the future and the
stock’s price make it attractive to do so. We also repurchase
shares to neutralize the dilution from stock options. During the
year, we repurchased . million shares and ended the year with
. million shares outstanding as compared with . mil-
lion shares, on a split-adjusted basis, at year-end .

We estimated and reflected in income approximately 

million of ‘Other than Temporary Impairments’during the year.
During , approximately % of our investment portfolio
was in equities, managed to track the Russell  index.We
own the individual securities in the equity index.We perform
ongoing reviews of these stocks and our bonds, evaluating 
unrealized losses for impairment, whether issuer specific or 
market related, and appropriately reflect ‘Other than Temp-
orary Impairments’ in the income statement as a realized loss.
All other unrealized gains or losses are reflected in shareholders’
equity. Our reviews are designed to ensure continuous integrity
in our financial disclosure.

Some Other Notable Actions
Our year was clearly characterized by the excellent 
underwriting results already discussed, but there were
several more points of note. 
A significant expense was the settlement of several long-stand-
ing class-action lawsuits. Without commenting on the basis,
merits or decisions to settle, I can report that we settled putative
class-action suits on diminution of value, handling of better-
ment in claim settlements, use of alternative agent commission
programs and a California-specific labor classification claim.
Approximately  million for these settlements is reflected in
 results. We have adjusted our operations to reduce the
chance of these exposures reoccurring.

Early in , we concluded that our entry into homeown-
ers insurance was not meeting the objectives we had set, to 
increase and support our auto business, and ended the initiative.
Bundling homeowners and auto insurance is a common prac-
tice and, although recent survey data suggest the requirement 
is declining for customers, we know it’s a challenge to our 
auto-only strategy.

We have decided to use restricted stock (instead of our prac-
tice of using non-qualified stock option grants) as the vehicle for
long-term compensation of senior management and to begin
using it in accordance with the  incentive plan if approved by
shareholders. After considerable thought about our use of stock
options, and less about the accounting of them, it became clear
that the use of restricted stock for long-term compensation is
more aligned with shareholder interests and has the additional
benefit of clearly defined cost and accounting treatment.



We are proud to have earned the
.  position in the U.S. Private
Passenger Auto Market, climbing
 places in the last  years.
(ranking estimated based on actual data
through nine months of )
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Corporate Governance 
Progressive’s Board of Directors meets six times a year.
Board committees, composed entirely of independent
directors, meet with relevant Progressive staff the day
before the Board meeting. That evening, all members
attend a dinner hosted by the Chairman. The first order
of business at the formal board meeting are the reports
of the committee chairpersons to the full board. 
Two of the six meetings are extended sessions with additional
focus on management interaction, strategy, planning, manage-
ment development and succession, and director training. In
those months without a formal board meeting,Tom Forrester,
, and I hold a conference call with the board Audit Commit-
tee to ensure all relevant matters are addressed on a timely basis.

The primary compensation for board members has been in
stock options; the proposal presented to shareholders will
change this to restricted stock, consistent with the proposed
change for management.

Peter Lewis will continue to chair the Progressive board,
although he became a non-management chairman effective
February , after  years of employment,  as a full-time
employee and  as Chief Executive Officer. He leads the ex-
ecutive session of non-management directors held after each
formal board meeting. All other directors besides me, currently
meet the  standards to be deemed independent of man-
agement. Complete details on board composition and com-
mittee assignments are disclosed later in this report and, along
with the committee charters, are available on our Investor 
Relations/Corporate Governance Web site.

Progressive is Special. Our objectives are demanding and hard
to achieve.

To become Consumers’. Choice for Auto Insurance re-
quires us to create a consumer proposition that is faster, fairer
and better than any comparable alternative—a proposition so
appealing that it becomes the standard of consumer expecta-
tion.To remain Consumers’ . Choice for Auto Insurance
will require us to create, over and over again, a new consumer
proposition of offerings and service that is continuously 
responsive to changing consumer demands. It is this cycle of
innovation and execution fueled by people who enjoy work-
ing hard, growing constantly, performing well and being 
rewarded competitively, that is the fabric of Progressive today
and for our future. As we start , I am proud to report that
the nearly , Progressive people are up for, and look for-
ward to, this challenge.

We deeply appreciate the customers we are privileged to serve
and the agents and service representatives in the more than
, independent insurance agencies who did business with
Progressive in . We are grateful for our shareholders’ con-
tinued confidence.To the men and women of Progressive, we
can look back on this year with pride.Thanks for all you do each
day to make Progressive a great company and for all we have 
accomplished together in .

Glenn M.Renwick
President and Chief Executive Officer 





feel 
good
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Vision, Values, Objectives

Vision
We seek to be an excellent, innovative, growing and 
enduring business by cost-effectively and profitably 
reducing the human trauma and economic costs of auto
accidents and other mishaps, and by building a recog-
nized, trusted, admired, business-generating brand. We
seek to maximize shareholder value and to provide a
positive environment which attracts quality people who
develop and achieve ambitious growth plans.

Customer Value Proposition
Our Customer Value Proposition provides a litmus test
for customer interactions, relationships and innovation.
Fast, Fair, Better That’s what you can expect from Progressive.
Everything we do recognizes the needs of busy consumers who
are cost-conscious, increasingly savvy about insurance and ready
for easy, new ways to quote, buy and manage their policies, in-
cluding claims service that respects their time and reduces the
trauma and inconvenience of loss.

Communicating a clear picture of Progressive by stating what we
try to achieve (Vision), how we interact with customers (Customer
Value Proposition), what guides our behavior (Core Values), and what
our people expect to accomplish and how we evaluate perform-
ance (Objectives), permits all people associated with Progressive
to understand their roles and to enjoy their contributions.
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Core Values
Progressive’s Core Values are pragmatic statements of
what works best for us in the real world. They govern
our decisions and behavior. We want them understood
and embraced by all Progressive people. Growth and
change provide new perspective, requiring regular 
refinement of Core Values.
Integrity We revere honesty.We adhere to the highest ethical stan-
dards, provide timely, accurate and complete financial report-
ing, encourage disclosing bad news and welcome disagreement.
Golden Rule We respect all people, value the differences among
them and deal with them in the way we want to be dealt with. This
requires us to know ourselves and to try to understand others.
Objectives We strive to communicate clearly Progressive’s am-
bitious objectives and our people’s personal and team objectives.
We evaluate performance against all these objectives.
Excellence We strive constantly to improve in order to meet and
exceed the highest expectations of our customers, shareholders
and people.We teach and encourage our people to improve per-
formance and to reduce the costs of what they do for customers.
We base their rewards on results and promotion on ability.
Profit The opportunity to earn a profit is how the competitive
free-enterprise system motivates investment to enhance human
health and happiness. Expanding profits reflect our customers’
and claimants’ increasingly positive view of Progressive.

Profitability Progressive’s most important goal is for its insurance
subsidiaries to produce an aggregate calendar year % under-
writing profit. Our business is a composite of many products
defined in part by product type, distribution channel, geogra-
phy, tenure of the customer and underwriting grouping. Each
of these products has targeted operating parameters based on
level of maturity, underlying cost structures, customer mix and
policy life expectancy. Our aggregate goal is the balanced blend
of these individual performance targets in any calendar year.
Overall, we had an underwriting profit of .% in , and an
underwriting profit of .% for the past five years and .% for
the past ten years. Estimated industry results for the personal
auto insurance market for the same periods were underwriting
losses of .%, .% and .%, respectively.
Growth Our goal is to grow as fast as possible constrained only
by our profitability objective and our ability to provide high
quality customer service. Progressive is a growth-oriented com-
pany and management incentives are tied to profitable growth.
We report Personal Lines and Commercial Auto results sep-
arately. We further breakdown our Personal Lines’ results by
channel, Agent and Direct, to give shareholders a more accu-
rate picture of the business dynamics of each distribution
method and their respective rates of growth. Aggregate expense
ratios and aggregate growth rates disguise the true nature and
performance of each business. Personal Lines and Commercial
Auto net premiums written grew % and %, respectively, in
. See Management’s Discussion and Analysis included as an
Appendix to the Company’s  Proxy Statement for a further
breakdown of the Agent and Direct results.

Financial Objectives and Policies 
Consistent achievement of superior results requires that
our people understand Progressive’s objectives and
their specific role, and that their personal objectives
dovetail with Progressive’s. Our objectives are ambitious
yet realistic. We are committed to achieving financial 
objectives over rolling five-year periods. Progressive
monitors its financial policies continuously and strives
to meet these targets annually. Experience always 
clarifies objectives and illuminates better policies. We
constantly evolve as we monitor the execution of our
policies and progress toward achieving our objectives.
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Financial Policies Progressive balances risk in underwriting with
risk of investing and financing activities in order to have suf-
ficient capital to support all the insurance we can profitably 
underwrite and service. Risks arise in all operational and func-
tional areas, and therefore must be assessed holistically,
accounting for the offsetting and compounding effects of the
separate sources of risk within the Company. Our financial
policies define our allocation of risk and we measure our per-
formance against them. If, in our view, future opportunities
meet our financial objectives and policies, we will invest 
capital in expanding business operations. Any underleveraged
capital will be returned to investors. We expect to earn a return
on equity greater than its cost. Presented is an overview of
Progressive’s Underwriting, Investing and Financing policies.

Achievements
We are convinced that the best way to maximize share-
holder value is to achieve these financial objectives and
policies consistently. A shareholder who purchased 100
shares of Progressive for $1,800 in our first public stock
offering on April 15,1971, owned 23,066 shares on De-
cember 31, 2002, with a market value of $1,144,800, for
a 22.6% compounded annual return, compared to the
7.1% return achieved by investors in the Standard &
Poor’s 500 during the same period. In addition, the
shareholder received dividends of $2,229 in 2002,
bringing total dividends received to $26,723 since the
shares were purchased.
In the ten years since December , , Progressive share-
holders have realized compounded annual returns of .%,
compared to .% for the  . In the five years since De-
cember , , Progressive shareholders’ returns were .%,
compared to a negative .% for the  . In , the returns
were a negative .% on Progressive shares and a negative .%
for the  .

Underwriting Monitor pricing 
and reserving discipline

> Manage profitability targets and
operational performance at our
lowest level of product definition

> Target premium-to-surplus ratio 
at : for each insurance subsidiary

> Ensure loss reserves are adequate
and develop with minimal variance

Investing Maintain a liquid,
diversified investment portfolio

> Manage on a total return basis
> Target an %/% allocation 
to fixed income securities/
common equities

> Manage interest rate, credit, pre-
payment and concentration risk

Financing Position capital to sup-
port underwriting operations

> Maintain debt between % and
% of total capital at book value

> Neutralize dilution from equity-
based compensation through share
repurchases

> Pay modest cash dividends that
increase annually, while split-
ting stock when the share price
exceeds  for a reasonable 
period of time

Over the years, when we have had adequate capital and believed
it to be appropriate, we have repurchased our shares. In addition,
as our financial policies state, we will repurchase shares to neu-
tralize the dilution from equity-based compensation programs.
Since , we spent . million repurchasing our shares, at
an average cost of . per share. During , we repurchased
,, Common Shares, with , Common Shares re-
purchased prior to the stock split and ,, repurchased after
the split.The total cost to repurchase these shares was .mil-
lion with an average cost, on a split-adjusted basis, of . per
share (Progressive did not split its treasury shares).The 

repurchases included , Common Shares repurchased to
offset obligations under various employee benefit plans.
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Objectives and Policies Scorecard

Target1 2002 2001 2000

Financial Results

Underwriting margin 4% 7.6% 4.8% (4.4)%
Growth * 30% 17% 1%
Premium-to-surplus ratio 3:1 2.8 2.7 2.8
Investment allocation: fixed/equity 85%/15% 87%/13% 84%/16% 86% /14%
Debt-to-total capital ratio 20%–30% 28% 25% 21%
Return on average 

shareholders’ equity (ROE)2 19.3% 13.5% 1.7%
Comprehensive ROE3 20.5% 15.5% 4.5%

*previously defined 
1Based on historical averages, meeting our current goals and policies is expected to produce a comprehensive return on 
average shareholders’ equity of around 15%.

2Based on net income.
3Based on comprehensive income. Comprehensive ROE is consistent with the Company’s policy to manage on a total return
basis and better reflects growth in shareholder value. For a reconciliation of net income to comprehensive income and for the
components of comprehensive income, see the Company’s Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity and
Note 10–Other Comprehensive Income, respectively, which can be found in the complete Consolidated Financial Statements
and Notes presented as an Appendix to the Company’s 2003 Proxy Statement.
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The Progressive Corporation and Subsidiaries

Report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independent Accountants

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and
the related consolidated statements of income, changes in share-
holders’ equity and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of The Progressive Corporation and its 
subsidiaries at December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in 
the period ended December 31, 2002, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These 
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s 
management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 

financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits
of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which require that we plan
and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the account-
ing principles used and significant estimates made by management,
and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We 
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders, The Progressive Corporation:

Cleveland, Ohio
January 22, 2003
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Consolidated Statements of Income

The Progressive Corporation and Subsidiaries

(millions–except per share amounts)

For the years ended December 31, 2002 2001 2000

Revenues

Premiums earned $ 8,883.5 $ 7,161.8 $ 6,348.4
Investment income 455.2 413.6 385.2
Net realized gains (losses) on securities (78.6) (111.9) 16.9
Service revenues 34.3 24.7 20.5

Total revenues 9,294.4 7,488.2 6,771.0

Expenses

Losses and loss adjustment expenses 6,299.1 5,264.1 5,279.4
Policy acquisition costs 1,031.6 864.9 788.0
Other underwriting expenses 874.2 686.9 559.3
Investment expenses 11.5 12.7 9.1
Service expenses 22.0 19.8 21.4
Interest expense 74.6 52.2 77.8
Nonrecurring item1 — — 4.2

Total expenses 8,313.0 6,900.6 6,739.2

Net Income

Income before income taxes 981.4 587.6 31.8
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 314.1 176.2 (14.3)
Net income $ 667.3 $ 411.4 $ 46.1

Computation of Earnings Per Share

Basic:
Average shares outstanding 219.0 221.0 219.6

Per share $ 3.05 $ 1.86 $ .21
Diluted:
Average shares outstanding 219.0 221.0 219.6
Net effect of dilutive stock options 4.2 4.2 3.4

Total equivalent shares 223.2 225.2 223.0
Per share $ 2.99 $ 1.83 $ .21

1Represents the realization of the foreign currency translation loss associated with the substantial
liquidation of the Company’s foreign subsidiary.

All share and per share amounts were adjusted for the April 22, 2002, 3-for-1 stock split.

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31, 2002 2001

Assets

Investments:
Available-for-sale: 

Fixed maturities, at market (amortized cost: $7,409.4 and $5,873.0) $ 7,712.5 $ 5,949.0
Equity securities, at market:

Preferred stocks (cost: $631.9 and $675.4) 656.7 713.9
Common equities (cost: $1,425.3 and $1,263.7) 1,347.3 1,336.0

Short-term investments, at amortized cost (market: $567.8 and $227.4) 567.8 227.4
Total investments 10,284.3 8,226.3

Cash 16.9 11.2
Accrued investment income 77.9 75.2
Premiums receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $54.6 and $46.2 1,742.8 1,497.1
Reinsurance recoverables, including $34.8 and $33.2 on paid losses 215.7 201.5
Prepaid reinsurance premiums 96.7 77.6
Deferred acquisition costs 363.5 316.6
Income taxes 219.2 178.1
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $392.4 and $384.8 503.1 498.0
Other assets 44.3 40.8

Total assets $ 13,564.4 $ 11,122.4

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

Unearned premiums $ 3,304.3 $ 2,716.7
Loss and loss adjustment expense reserves 3,813.0 3,238.0
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,190.1 821.3
Debt 1,489.0 1,095.7

Total liabilities 9,796.4 7,871.7
Shareholders’ equity:

Common Shares, $1.00 par value (authorized 300.0, issued 230.1 and 83.1,
including treasury shares of 12.1 and 9.7) 218.0 73.4

Paid-in capital 584.7 554.0
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss):

Net unrealized appreciation on investment securities 162.4 121.5
Hedges on forecasted transactions 11.7 9.2
Foreign currency translation adjustment (4.8) (4.8)

Retained earnings 2,796.0 2,497.4
Total shareholders’ equity 3,768.0 3,250.7

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 13,564.4 $ 11,122.4

(millions)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

The Progressive Corporation and Subsidiaries
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

For the years ended December 31, 2002 2001 2000

Retained Earnings

Balance, Beginning of year $ 2,497.4 $ 2,220.4 $ 2,210.5
Net income 667.3 $ 667.3 411.4 $ 411.4 46.1 $ 46.1
Cash dividends on Common Shares ($.096, $.093 

and $.090 per share, split effected) (21.1) (20.6) (19.8)
Treasury shares purchased (200.7) (112.5) (15.5)
Capitalization of stock split (147.0) — —
Other, net .1 (1.3) (.9)

Balance, End of year $ 2,796.0 $ 2,497.4 $ 2,220.4

Accumulated Other Comprehensive
Income (Loss), Net of Tax

Balance, Beginning of year $ 125.9 $ 64.7 $ (12.4)
Change in unrealized appreciation 40.9 52.0 72.9
Hedges on forecasted transactions 2.5 9.2 —
Foreign currency translation adjustment — — 4.2

Other comprehensive income 43.4 43.4 61.2 61.2 77.1 77.1
Balance, End of year $ 169.3 $ 125.9 $ 64.7

Comprehensive Income $ 710.7 $ 472.6 $ 123.2

Common Shares, $1.00 Par Value

Balance, Beginning of year $ 73.4 $ 73.5 $ 73.1
Stock options exercised 1.2 .8 .7
Treasury shares purchased1 (3.6) (.9) (.3)
Capitalization of stock split 147.0 — —

Balance, End of year $ 218.0 $ 73.4 $ 73.5

Paid-In Capital

Balance, Beginning of year $ 554.0 $ 511.2 $ 481.6
Stock options exercised 21.4 25.2 17.9
Tax benefits on stock options exercised 19.3 24.4 11.3
Treasury shares purchased (10.0) (6.8) (2.0)
Other — — 2.4

Balance, End of year $ 584.7 $ 554.0 $ 511.2

Total Shareholders’ Equity $ 3,768.0 $ 3,250.7 $ 2,869.8

There are 20.0 million Serial Preferred Shares authorized; no such shares are issued or outstanding.

There are 5.0 million Voting Preference Shares authorized; no such shares have been issued.

1The Company did not split treasury shares. In 2002, the Company repurchased 136,182 Common Shares prior 
to the stock split and 3,471,916 Common Shares subsequent to the stock split.

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

(millions–except per share amounts)

The Progressive Corporation and Subsidiaries
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(millions)

For the years ended December 31, 2002 2001 2000 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Net income $ 667.3 $ 411.4 $ 46.1
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 83.9 81.0 77.6
Net realized (gains) losses on securities 78.6 111.9 (16.9)
Realized foreign currency translation loss — — 4.2
Changes in:

Unearned premiums 587.6 80.2 (144.9)
Loss and loss adjustment expense reserves 575.0 251.6 570.2
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities 256.6 103.4 40.1
Prepaid reinsurance premiums (19.1) 18.1 (7.4)
Reinsurance recoverables (14.2) 36.2 17.0
Premiums receivable (245.7) 69.9 193.8
Deferred acquisition costs (46.9) (6.7) 33.5
Income taxes (65.1) 30.2 (6.9)
Tax benefits from exercise of stock options 19.3 24.4 11.3
Other, net 34.7 23.0 4.7

Net cash provided by operating activities 1,912.0 1,234.6 822.4

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Purchases:
Available-for-sale: fixed maturities (7,924.9) (4,935.2) (5,259.2)

equity securities (680.7) (1,696.0) (1,227.2)
Sales:

Available-for-sale: fixed maturities 5,823.3 3,335.5 4,728.3
equity securities 412.0 1,436.3 837.5

Maturities, paydowns, calls and other:
Available-for-sale: fixed maturities 594.0 451.9 406.7

equity securities — 135.9 27.0
Net (purchases) sales of short-term investments (340.4) (40.6) 42.2
Net unsettled security transactions 115.3 (95.3) 64.3
Purchases of property and equipment (89.9) (74.9) (130.3)

Net cash used in investing activities (2,091.3) (1,482.4) (510.7)

Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Proceeds from exercise of stock options 22.6 26.0 18.6
Proceeds from debt 398.6 365.4 —
Payments of debt (.8) (.5) (300.4)
Dividends paid to shareholders (21.1) (20.6) (19.8)
Acquisition of treasury shares (214.3) (120.2) (17.8)
Other, net — — 2.4

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 185.0 250.1 (317.0)
Increase (decrease) in cash 5.7 2.3 (5.3)
Cash, Beginning of year 11.2 8.9 14.2
Cash, End of year $ 16.9 $ 11.2 $ 8.9

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

The Progressive Corporation and Subsidiaries
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000

Nature of Operations The Progressive Corporation, an insurance
holding company formed in 1965, owns 69 subsidiaries and has 
1 mutual insurance company affiliate and 1 reciprocal insurance 
company affiliate (the Company). The insurance subsidiaries and 
affiliates provide personal automobile insurance and other specialty
property-casualty insurance and related services throughout the
United States. The Company’s Personal Lines segment writes insur-
ance for private passenger automobiles and recreation vehicles
through both the independent agent channel and the direct channel.
The Company’s Commercial Auto segment writes insurance for 
automobiles and trucks owned by small businesses primarily through
the independent agent channel. 

Basis of Consolidation and Reporting The accompanying con-
solidated financial statements include the accounts of The Progres-
sive Corporation, its subsidiaries and affiliates. All of the subsidiaries
and the affiliates are wholly owned or controlled. All intercompany 
accounts and transactions are eliminated in consolidation. 

Estimates The Company is required to make estimates and 
assumptions when preparing its financial statements and accompa-
nying notes in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Investments Available-for-sale: fixed maturity securities are debt
securities, which may have fixed or variable principal payment sched-
ules, may be held for indefinite periods of time, and may be used as
a part of the Company’s asset/liability strategy or sold in response to
changes in interest rates, anticipated prepayments, risk/reward char-
acteristics, liquidity needs or similar economic factors. These secu-
rities are carried at market value with the corresponding unrealized
appreciation or depreciation, net of deferred income taxes, reported
in accumulated other comprehensive income. Market values are 
obtained from a recognized pricing service or other quoted sources.
The asset-backed portfolio is accounted for under the retrospective
method; prepayment assumptions are based on market expectations.
For interest only and non-investment-grade asset-backed securities,
the prospective method is used in accordance with the guidance 
prescribed by Emerging Issues Task Force Issue 99-20, “Recognition
of Interest Income and Impairment on Purchased and Retained 
Beneficial Interest in Securitized Financial Assets.”

Available-for-sale: equity securities include common equities and
nonredeemable preferred stocks and are reported at quoted market
values. Changes in the market values of these securities, net of 
deferred income taxes, are reflected as unrealized appreciation or 
depreciation in accumulated other comprehensive income. Changes
in value of foreign equities due to foreign currency exchange rates
are limited by foreign currency hedges; unhedged amounts are not
material and changes in value are recognized in income in the current
period. There were no foreign currency hedges outstanding at 
December 31, 2002.

Trading securities are securities bought principally for the purpose
of sale in the near term and, when not material to the Company’s 
financial position, cash flows or results of operations, are reported 
at market value within the available-for-sale portfolio. During 2002,
the Company had no trading securities. In prior years, the net activ-
ity in trading securities was not material to the Company’s financial
position or cash flows; the effect on results of operations is separately
disclosed in Note 2 – Investments. To the extent the Company has
trading securities, changes in market value would be recognized in
income in the current period.

Derivative instruments may include futures, options, forward 
positions, foreign currency forwards and interest rate swap agree-
ments and may be used in the portfolio for risk management, fair value
hedging or trading purposes. During 2002, the Company had no fair
value hedges or derivative instruments held or issued for risk man-
agement or trading purposes. In prior years, the net activity in these
instruments was not material to the Company’s financial position,
cash flows or results of operations; gains or losses during the year
were reported in the available-for-sale portfolio. Gains and losses on
foreign currency hedges offset the foreign exchange gains and losses
on the foreign equity portfolio. The Company did not have any 
foreign currency equity during 2002.

To the extent the Company held derivative instruments, the deriv-
atives would be recognized as either assets or liabilities and meas-
ured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in income in
the period of change. Changes in the fair value of the hedged items
would be recognized in income while the hedge was in effect. 

Derivatives designated as hedges would also be evaluated on 
established criteria to determine the effectiveness of their correlation
to, and ability to reduce risk of, specific securities or transactions; 
effectiveness would be reassessed regularly. If the effectiveness of a
fair value hedge becomes non-compliant, the adjustment in the
change in value of the hedged item would no longer be recognized in
income during the current period. 

Derivatives may also be used to hedge forecasted transactions.
Changes in fair value of these hedges are reported as a component of
accumulated other comprehensive income and subsequently amor-
tized into earnings over the life of the hedged transaction. Gains and
losses on hedges on forecasted transactions are amortized over the
life of the hedged item (see Note 4 – Debt). Hedges on forecasted trans-
actions that no longer qualify for hedge accounting due to lack of cor-
relation are considered derivatives used for risk management purposes.

Short-term investments include eurodollar deposits, commercial
paper and other securities maturing within one year and are reported
at amortized cost, which approximates market.

Investment securities are exposed to various risks such as inter-
est rate, market and credit risk. Market values of securities fluctuate
based on the magnitude of changing market conditions; significant
changes in market conditions could materially affect portfolio value
in the near term. The Company continually monitors its portfolio 
for pricing changes, which might indicate potential impairments and,
on a quarterly basis, performs a detailed review of securities with 

1 Reporting and Accounting Policies

The Progressive Corporation and Subsidiaries
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unrealized losses based on predetermined criteria. In such cases,
changes in market value are evaluated to determine the extent to
which such changes are attributable to (i) fundamental factors spe-
cific to the issuer, such as financial conditions, business prospects
or other factors or (ii) market-related factors, such as interest rates or
equity market declines. When a security in the Company’s investment
portfolio has an unrealized loss in market value that is deemed to be
other than temporary, the Company reduces the book value of such
security to its current market value, recognizing the decline as a 
realized loss in the income statement.  Any future increases in the
market value of securities written down are reflected as changes in
unrealized gains as part of accumulated other comprehensive income
within shareholders’ equity.

Realized gains and losses on securities are computed based on
the first-in first-out method and include write-downs on available-
for-sale securities considered to have other than temporary declines
in market value.

Property and Equipment Property and equipment are recorded at
cost. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives of the
assets using accelerated methods for computers and the straight-
line method for all other fixed assets. The useful lives range from 3 to
4 years for computers, 10 to 40 years for buildings and improvements,
and 5 to 6 years for all other property and equipment. Property and
equipment includes software capitalized for internal use. At Decem-
ber 31, 2002 and 2001, land and buildings comprised 71% and 73%,
respectively, of total property and equipment.

Total interest capitalized was $.5 million, $1.2 million and $3.3 mil-
lion in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, relating to both the Com-
pany’s construction projects and capitalized computer software costs.

Insurance Premiums and Receivables Insurance premiums writ-
ten are earned primarily on a pro rata basis over the period of risk
using a mid-month convention. The Company provides insurance
and related services to individuals, small commercial accounts and
lenders throughout the United States, and offers a variety of payment
plans. Generally, premiums are collected in advance of providing risk
coverage, minimizing the Company’s exposure to credit risk. The
Company performs a policy level evaluation to determine the extent
the premiums receivable balance exceeds its unearned premiums
balance. The Company then ages this exposure to establish an 
allowance for doubtful accounts.

Income Taxes The income tax provision is calculated under the bal-
ance sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded
based on the difference between the financial statement and tax
bases of assets and liabilities at the enacted tax rates. The principal
assets and liabilities giving rise to such differences are net unrealized
gains/losses on securities, loss reserves, unearned premiums 
reserves, deferred acquisition costs and non-deductible accruals.
The Company reviews its deferred tax assets and liabilities for 
recoverability. At December 31, 2002, the Company is able to demon-
strate that the benefit of its deferred tax assets is fully realizable.

Loss and Loss Adjustment Expense Reserves Loss reserves 
represent the estimated liability on claims reported to the Company,
plus reserves for losses incurred but not yet reported (IBNR). These
estimates are reported net of amounts recoverable from salvage 
and subrogation. Loss adjustment expense reserves represent the

estimated expenses required to settle these claims and losses. 
The methods of making estimates and establishing these reserves
are reviewed regularly, and resulting adjustments are reflected in 
income currently. Such loss and loss adjustment expense reserves
could be susceptible to significant change in the near term.

Reinsurance The Company’s reinsurance transactions include 
premiums written under state-mandated involuntary plans for com-
mercial vehicles (Commercial Auto Insurance Procedures–CAIP), for
which the Company retains no indemnity risk (see Note 6 – Reinsur-
ance for further discussion). The remaining reinsurance arises from
the Company seeking to reduce its loss exposure in its auto and non-
auto programs. Prepaid reinsurance premiums are recognized on a
pro rata basis over the period of risk using a mid-month convention.
Because the Company’s primary line of business, auto insurance, is
written at relatively low limits of liability, the Company does not 
believe that it needs to mitigate its risk through voluntary reinsurance. 

Earnings Per Share Basic earnings per share are computed using
the weighted average number of Common Shares outstanding. 
Diluted earnings per share include common stock equivalents 
assumed outstanding during the period. The Company’s common
stock equivalents include only stock options.

Deferred Acquisition Costs Deferred acquisition costs include
commissions, premium taxes and other variable underwriting and 
direct sales costs incurred in connection with writing business. These
costs are deferred and amortized over the policy period in which the
related premiums are earned. The Company considers anticipated
investment income in determining the recoverability of these costs.
Management believes that these costs will be fully recoverable in the
near term. The Company does not defer advertising costs.

Guaranty Fund Assessments Guaranty fund assessments are 
accrued after a formal determination of insolvency has occurred and
the Company has written the premiums on which the assessments
will be based.

Service Revenues and Expenses Service revenues consist prima-
rily of fees generated from processing business for involuntary plans
and are earned on a pro rata basis over the term of the related poli-
cies. Acquisition expenses are deferred and amortized over the 
period in which the related revenues are earned.

Supplemental Cash Flow Information Cash includes only bank 
demand deposits. The Company paid income taxes of $392.0 
million, $127.3 million and $13.8 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, 
respectively. Total interest paid was $64.4 million during 2002, $51.3
million during 2001 and $81.6 million during 2000. 

The Company effected a 3-for-1 stock split in the form of a divi-
dend to shareholders on April 22, 2002. The Company issued its
Common Shares by transferring $147.0 million from retained earn-
ings to the Common Share account. All share and per share amounts
and stock prices were adjusted to give effect to the split. Treasury
shares were not split.

Stock Options The Company follows the provisions of Accounting
Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued
to Employees,” to account for its stock option activity in the financial
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2 Investments

The composition of the investment portfolio at December 31 was:

Gross Gross % of
Unrealized Unrealized Market Total

(millions) Cost Gains Losses Value Portfolio

2002

Available-for-sale:
U.S. government obligations $ 1,619.6 $ 27.3 $ — $ 1,646.9 16.0%
State and local government obligations 1,900.3 76.2 (.5) 1,976.0 19.2
Foreign government obligations 25.6 .8 — 26.4 .3
Corporate and U.S. agency debt securities 1,443.1 75.6 (5.9) 1,512.8 14.7
Asset-backed securities 2,420.8 140.1 (10.5) 2,550.4 24.8

7,409.4 320.0 (16.9) 7,712.5 75.0
Preferred stocks 631.9 35.1 (10.3) 656.7 6.4
Common equities 1,425.3 55.3 (133.3) 1,347.3 13.1

Short-term investments 567.8 — — 567.8 5.5
$ 10,034.4 $ 410.4 $ (160.5) $ 10,284.3 100.0%

2001

Available-for-sale:
U.S. government obligations $ 667.9 $ 3.1 $ (3.3) $ 667.7 8.1%
State and local government obligations 1,066.0 24.6 (6.0) 1,084.6 13.2
Foreign government obligations 38.2 .9 — 39.1 .5
Corporate and U.S. agency debt securities 1,823.7 41.7 (13.2) 1,852.2 22.5
Asset-backed securities 2,277.2 62.2 (34.0) 2,305.4 28.0

5,873.0 132.5 (56.5) 5,949.0 72.3
Preferred stocks 675.4 39.4 (.9) 713.9 8.7
Common equities 1,263.7 110.8 (38.5) 1,336.0 16.2

Short-term investments 227.4 — — 227.4 2.8
$ 8,039.5 $ 282.7 $ (95.9) $ 8,226.3 100.0%

For changes in the net unrealized gains (losses) during the period, see Note 10 – Other Comprehensive Income.

At December 31, 2002, bonds in the principal amount of $80.2 million were on deposit with various regulatory agencies to meet statutory
requirements. The Company did not have any securities of one issuer with an aggregate cost or market value exceeding ten percent of total
shareholders’ equity at December 31, 2002 or 2001.

The following table is presented in accordance with SFAS 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation – Transition and Disclosure.” The
Company uses the Black-Scholes pricing model to calculate the fair value of the options awarded as of the date of grant.

(millions, except per share amounts) 2002 2001 2000

Net income, as reported $ 667.3 $ 411.4 $ 46.1
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined

under the fair value based method for all awards, net of related tax effects (16.9) (15.4) (12.1)
Net income, pro forma $ 650.4 $ 396.0 $ 34.0

Earnings per share
Basic – as reported $ 3.05 $ 1.86 $ .21
Basic – pro forma 2.97 1.79 .15

Diluted – as reported $ 2.99 $ 1.83 $ .21
Diluted – pro forma 2.92 1.76 .15

statements. The Company granted all options currently outstanding
at an exercise price equal to the market price at the date of grant and,
therefore, under APB 25, no compensation expense is recorded. The

Company follows the disclosure provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation.”
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Trading securities are accounted for separately in accordance with
SFAS 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity
Securities.” At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the Company did not
hold any trading securities. Net realized losses on trading securities
for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 were $0, $6.5

million and $19.0 million, respectively. Trading securities are not 
material to the Company’s financial condition, cash flows or results
of operations and are reported within the available-for-sale portfolio,
rather than separately disclosed.

The components of net realized gains (losses) for the years ended December 31 were:

(millions) 2002 2001 2000

Gross realized gains:
Available-for-sale: fixed maturities $ 159.4 $ 63.0 $ 41.3

preferred stocks 12.0 4.2 1.2
common equities 35.3 119.7 158.2

Short-term investments — .1 .7
206.7 187.0 201.4

Gross realized losses:
Available-for-sale: fixed maturities (85.6) (51.9) (43.8)

preferred stocks (.1) (31.0) (2.9)
common equities (199.6) (216.0) (137.8)

(285.3) (298.9) (184.5)
Net realized gains (losses) on securities:

Available-for-sale: fixed maturities 73.8 11.1 (2.5)
preferred stocks 11.9 (26.8) (1.7)
common equities (164.3) (96.3) 20.4

Short-term investments — .1 .7
$ (78.6) $ (111.9) $ 16.9

For 2002, 2001 and 2000, net realized gains (losses) on securities include $136.5 million, $36.0 million and $43.1 million, respectively, of write
downs in securities determined to have an other than temporary decline in market value for securities held at December 31.

The composition of fixed maturities by maturity at December 31, 2002 was:

Market
(millions) Cost Value

Less than one year $ 574.9 $ 589.7
One to five years 4,197.2 4,357.2
Five to ten years 2,471.0 2,597.3
Ten years or greater 166.3 168.3

$ 7,409.4 $ 7,712.5

The components of net investment income for the years ended December 31 were:

(millions) 2002 2001 2000

Available-for-sale: fixed maturities $ 379.4 $ 335.0 $ 296.8
preferred stocks 45.1 53.8 37.5
common equities 22.8 14.2 26.1

Short-term investments 7.9 10.6 24.8
Investment income 455.2 413.6 385.2
Investment expenses 11.5 12.7 9.1

Net investment income $ 443.7 $ 400.9 $ 376.1
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3 Income Taxes

The components of the Company’s income tax provision (benefit) were as follows:

(millions) 2002 2001 2000

Current tax provision $ 404.9 $ 176.6 $ 25.0
Deferred tax benefit (90.8) (.4) (39.3)

Total income tax provision (benefit) $ 314.1 $ 176.2 $ (14.3)

The provision (benefit) for income taxes in the accompanying consolidated statements of income differed from the statutory rate as follows:

(millions) 2002 2001 2000

Income before income taxes $ 981.4 $ 587.6 $ 31.8
Tax at statutory rate $ 343.5 35% $ 205.7 35% $ 11.1 35%
Tax effect of:

Exempt interest income (15.6) (2) (14.7) (3) (17.6) (55)
Dividends received deduction (12.9) (1) (12.6) (2) (10.3) (32)
Goodwill amortization — — — — 1.4 4
Foreign currency translation loss — — — — 1.4 4
Other items, net (.9) — (2.2) — (.3) (1)

$ 314.1 32% $ 176.2 30% $ (14.3) (45)%

Asset-backed securities are reported based upon their projected cash
flows. All other securities which do not have a single maturity date are
reported at average maturity. Actual maturities may differ from 
expected maturities because the issuers of the securities may have
the right to call or prepay obligations.

The Company records derivative instruments at fair value on the
balance sheet, with changes in value reflected in income during the
current period. This accounting treatment did not change when SFAS
133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,”
became effective January 1, 2001; therefore, no transition adjustment
was required.

Derivative instruments are generally used to manage the Com-
pany’s risks and enhance the yields of the available-for-sale portfo-
lio. This is accomplished by modifying the basis, duration, interest
rate or foreign currency characteristics of the portfolio, hedged 
securities or hedged cash flows. During 2002, the Company entered
into a cash flow hedge in anticipation of its $400 million debt issuance,
of which $150 million was originally expected to be a 10-year issuance
and $250 million a 30-year issuance. The decision to issue all 30-year
debt made the 10-year hedge a discontinued hedge and the loss rec-
ognized on closing the hedge of $1.5 million was realized in income
in accordance with SFAS 133. During 2001, the Company entered

into a cash flow hedge in anticipation of its $350 million debt issuance.
The debt issuance hedges are described further in Note 4 – Debt.

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the Company did not hold any
open risk management derivative positions. During 2002, the Com-
pany recognized net losses on risk management derivatives of $0,
compared to $2.7 million in 2001 and $2.3 million in 2000.

Derivative instruments may also be used for trading purposes. At
December 31, 2002, the Company held no derivative instruments
used for trading purposes. At December 31, 2001, the Company held
a credit default protection instrument, with a net market value of less
than $.1 million. Net gains (losses) on derivative positions were $(.1)
million in 2002, $1.9 million in 2001 and $2.6 million in 2000 and are
included in the available-for-sale portfolio.

For all derivative positions, net cash requirements are limited to
changes in market values, which may vary based upon changes in
interest rates, currency exchange rates and other factors. Exposure
to credit risk is limited to the carrying value; collateral may be required
to limit credit risk.

As of December 31, 2002, the Company had open investment fund-
ing commitments of $26.9 million. The Company had no uncollater-
alized lines or letters of credit as of December 31, 2002 or 2001.
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At December 31, 2002 and 2001, net income taxes payable were $75.6 million and $49.4 million, respectively.

Deferred income taxes reflect the effect for financial statement reporting purposes of temporary differences between the financial statement
carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and liabilities. At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the components of the net deferred tax assets
were as follows:

(millions) 2002 2001

Deferred tax assets:
Unearned premiums reserve $ 230.7 $ 191.4
Non-deductible accruals 79.2 54.6
Loss reserves 149.6 135.5
Capital loss carryforward — 14.1
Write-downs on securities 50.7 11.4
Other 5.6 1.6

Deferred tax liabilities:
Deferred acquisition costs (127.2) (110.8)
Unrealized gains (87.5) (65.3)
Hedges on forecasted transactions (6.3) (5.0)

Net deferred tax assets $ 294.8 $ 227.5

4 Debt

Debt at December 31 consisted of:

2002 2001

Market Market
(millions) Cost Value Cost Value

6.25% Senior Notes due 2032 (issued: $400.0, November 2002) $ 393.5 $ 432.2 $ — $ —
6.375% Senior Notes due 2012 (issued: $350.0, December 2001) 347.2 370.4 347.0 348.4
65⁄8% Senior Notes due 2029 (issued: $300.0, March 1999) 294.0 295.8 293.9 271.1
7.30% Notes due 2006 (issued: $100.0, May 1996) 99.8 110.9 99.8 106.1
6.60% Notes due 2004 (issued: $200.0, January 1994) 199.8 208.1 199.6 209.5
7% Notes due 2013 (issued: $150.0, October 1993) 148.7 165.5 148.6 150.6
Other debt 6.0 6.0 6.8 6.8

$1,489.0 $1,588.9 $1,095.7 $1,092.5

Debt includes amounts the Company has borrowed and contributed
to the capital of its insurance subsidiaries or borrowed for other long-
term purposes. Market values are obtained from publicly quoted
sources. Interest on all debt is payable semiannually. There are no 
restrictive financial covenants.

The 6.25% Senior Notes, the 6.375% Senior Notes and the 65⁄8%
Senior Notes (collectively, “Senior Notes”) may be redeemed in whole
or in part at any time, at the option of the Company, subject to a “make
whole” provision. All other debt is noncallable. 

Prior to issuance of the Senior Notes, the Company entered into
forecasted debt issuance hedges to hedge against possible rises in
interest rates. Upon issuance of the applicable debt securities, the
hedges were closed. Pursuant to SFAS 133, the Company recog-
nized, as part of accumulated other comprehensive income, a $5.1
million gain associated with the 6.25% Senior Notes and an $18.4
million gain associated with the 6.375% Senior Notes. In addition, in
2001, the Company reclassified the remaining $4.2 million loss 

associated with the 65⁄8% Senior Notes from a deferred asset 
account, in accordance with SFAS 80, “Accounting for Futures 
Contracts,” to accumulated other comprehensive income. The
gain/loss on these hedges is recognized as an adjustment to interest
expense over the life of the related debt issuances.

In May 1990, the Company entered into a revolving credit arrange-
ment with National City Bank, which is reviewed by the bank annu-
ally. Under this agreement, the Company has the right to borrow up
to $10.0 million. By selecting from available credit options, the Com-
pany may elect to pay interest at rates related to the London inter-
bank offered rate, the bank’s base rate or at a money market rate. A
commitment fee is payable on any unused portion of the committed
amount at the rate of .125% per annum. The Company had no bor-
rowings under this arrangement at December 31, 2002 or 2001.

Aggregate principal payments on debt outstanding at December
31, 2002, are $0 for 2003, $206.0 million for 2004, $0 for 2005, $100.0
million for 2006, $0 for 2007 and $1.2 billion thereafter.
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The Company’s objective is to establish case and IBNR reserves that
are adequate to cover all loss costs, while sustaining minimal varia-
tion from the date that the reserves are initially established until losses
are fully developed. The Company’s reserves developed conserva-
tively in 2001. Throughout 2000, the Company experienced an 
increase in severity trends which led to adverse development on prior
accident years in 2000.

Because the Company is primarily an insurer of motor vehicles, 
it has limited exposure for environmental, asbestos and general 
liability claims. The Company has established reserves for these 
exposures, in amounts which it believes to be adequate based on 

information currently known. The Company does not believe that
these claims will have a material affect on the Company’s liquidity, 
financial condition, cash flows or results of operations.

The Company writes personal and commercial auto insurance in
the coastal states, which could be exposed to natural catastrophes.
Although the occurrence of a major catastrophe could have a signif-
icant affect on the Company’s quarterly results, the Company 
believes such an event would not be so material as to disrupt the over-
all normal operations of the Company. The Company is unable to 
predict if any such events will occur in the near term.

Reinsurance contracts do not relieve the Company from its obligations
to policyholders. Failure of reinsurers to honor their obligations could
result in losses to the Company. The Company evaluates the financial
condition of its reinsurers and monitors concentrations of credit risk to
minimize its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies. 

As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, approximately 55% and 50%,
respectively, of the “prepaid reinsurance premiums” and “reinsurance
recoverables” are comprised of CAIP, for which the Company retains
no indemnity risk. 

The effect of reinsurance on premiums written and earned for the years ended December 31 was as follows:

2002 2001 2000

(millions) Written Earned Written Earned Written Earned

Direct premiums $9,665.7 $9,078.1 $7,379.2 $7,299.0 $6,402.1 $6,547.0
Ceded (213.8) (194.7) (119.2) (137.3) (206.0) (198.6)
Assumed .1 .1 .1 .1 — —

Net premiums $9,452.0 $8,883.5 $7,260.1 $7,161.8 $6,196.1 $6,348.4

Losses and loss adjustment expenses are net of reinsurance ceded of $131.8 million in 2002, $102.4 million in 2001 and $161.0 million in 2000.

6 Reinsurance

5 Loss and Loss Adjustment Expense Reserves

Activity in the loss and loss adjustment expense reserves, prepared in accordance with GAAP, is summarized as follows:

(millions) 2002 2001 2000

Balance at January 1 $ 3,238.0 $ 2,986.4 $ 2,416.2
Less reinsurance recoverables on unpaid losses 168.3 201.1 216.0

Net balance at January 1 3,069.7 2,785.3 2,200.2
Incurred related to:

Current year 6,295.6 5,363.1 5,203.6
Prior years 3.5 (99.0) 75.8

Total incurred 6,299.1 5,264.1 5,279.4
Paid related to:

Current year 4,135.0 3,570.4 3,447.7
Prior years 1,601.7 1,409.3 1,246.6

Total paid 5,736.7 4,979.7 4,694.3
Net balance at December 31 3,632.1 3,069.7 2,785.3

Plus reinsurance recoverables on unpaid losses 180.9 168.3 201.1
Balance at December 31 $ 3,813.0 $ 3,238.0 $ 2,986.4
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At December 31, 2002, $405.5 million of consolidated statutory 
policyholders’ surplus represents net admitted assets of the Com-
pany’s insurance subsidiaries and affiliates that are required to meet
minimum statutory surplus requirements in such entities’ states of
domicile. The companies may be licensed in states other than their
states of domicile, which may have higher minimum statutory surplus
requirements. Generally, the net admitted assets of insurance com-
panies that, subject to other applicable insurance laws and regulations,
are available for transfer to the parent company cannot include the net
admitted assets required to meet the minimum statutory surplus 
requirements of the states where the companies are licensed.

During 2002, the insurance subsidiaries paid aggregate cash 
dividends of $34.5 million to the parent company. Based on the 

dividend laws currently in effect, the insurance subsidiaries may pay
aggregate dividends of $455.5 million in 2003 without prior approval
from regulatory authorities.

Statutory policyholders’ surplus was $3,370.2 million and $2,647.7
million at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Statutory net
income was $557.4 million, $469.5 million and $33.8 million for the
years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

The Company files statutory-basis financial statements with state
insurance departments in all states in which the Company is licensed.
On January 1, 2001, significant changes to the statutory basis of 
accounting became effective. The cumulative effect of these changes
was recorded as a direct adjustment to statutory surplus. The effect
of adoption increased statutory surplus by $340.5 million.

8 Employee Benefit Plans

7 Statutory Financial Information

Retirement Plans The Company has a two-tiered Retirement 
Security Program. The first tier is a defined contribution pension plan
covering all employees who meet requirements as to age and length
of service. Contributions vary from 1% to 5% of annual eligible com-
pensation up to the Social Security wage base, based on years of 
eligible service. Company contributions were $13.0 million in 2002,
$10.7 million in 2001and $9.3 million in 2000. 

The second tier is a long-term savings plan under which the Com-
pany matches amounts contributed to the plan by an employee up
to a maximum of 3% of the employee’s eligible compensation. 
Effective April 1, 2002, Company matching contributions may be 
invested by a participant in any of the investment funds available
under the plan. Previously, such contributions were required to be 
invested in the Company stock fund until fully vested. Company
matching contributions were $16.9 million in 2002, $14.4 million in
2001 and $12.9 million in 2000.

During 2000, the Company terminated its defined benefit pension
plan and recognized $3.2 million in settlement expenses. In addition,
the Company recognized pension expense of $2.8 million in 2000. 

Postemployment Benefits The Company provides various postem-
ployment benefits to former or inactive employees who meet eligibility
requirements, their beneficiaries and covered dependents. Postem-
ployment benefits include salary continuation and disability-related
benefits, including workers’ compensation, and, if elected, continua-
tion of health-care benefits. The Company’s liability was $10.0 million
at December 31, 2002, compared to $8.3 million in 2001.

Postretirement Benefits The Company provides postretirement
health and life insurance benefits to all employees who met require-
ments as to age and length of service at December 31, 1988. This
group of employees represents less than 1% of the Company’s 
current workforce. The Company’s funding policy is to contribute 

annually the maximum amount that can be deducted for Federal 
income tax purposes. Contributions are intended to provide not only
for benefits attributed to services to date, but also for those expected
to be earned in the future.

Deferred Compensation The Company maintains The Progressive
Corporation Executive Deferred Compensation Plan (Deferral Plan),
which permits eligible executives to defer receipt of some or all of
their annual bonuses or other incentive awards. These deferred
amounts are deemed invested in one or more investment funds, 
including Common Shares of the Company, offered under the Defer-
ral Plan. All distributions from the Deferral Plan will be made in cash,
except that distributions representing amounts deemed invested in
Common Shares will be made in Common Shares. The Company 
reserved 900,000 Common Shares for issuance under the Deferral
Plan. The Company established an irrevocable grantor trust to 
provide a source of funds to assist the Company in meeting its 
liabilities under the Deferral Plan. At December 31, 2002 and 2001,
the trust held assets of $23.6 million and $19.2 million, respectively,
of which $5.2 million and $5.0 million were held in Common Shares,
to cover its liabilities.

Incentive Compensation Plans The Company’s 1995 Incentive
Plan, which provides for the granting of stock options and other stock-
based awards to key employees of the Company, has 15 million
shares authorized. The 1989 Incentive Plan has expired. The non-
qualified stock options granted are for periods up to ten years, 
become exercisable at various dates not earlier than six months after
the date of grant, and remain exercisable for specified periods there-
after. All options granted have an exercise price equal to the market
value of the Common Shares on the date of grant. All option exer-
cises are settled in Common Shares.
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The following employee options were outstanding or exercisable as of December 31, 2002:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted Average Weighted Weighted
Range of Number of Remaining Average Number of Average
Exercise Prices Shares Contractual Life Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price

$ 10 < 15 1,820,370 1.52 years $ 11.57 1,820,370 $ 11.57
15 < 20 3,735,788 5.64 years 18.05 1,279,778 15.77
20 < 30 1,280,399 4.41 years 23.15 1,094,606 22.83
30 < 40 1,967,283 7.89 years 30.86 277,263 31.16
40 < 50 1,966,240 5.58 years 44.54 66,325 45.04
50 < 60 1,177,191 8.97 years 52.20 4,380 51.46

$ 10 < 60 11,947,271 4,542,722

Under SFAS 123, the Company uses the Black-Scholes pricing model to calculate the fair value of the options awarded as of the date of grant,
including 134,271 options awarded to directors during the last three years, using the following assumptions:

2002 2001 2000

Option Term 6 years 6 years 6 years
Annualized Volatility Rate 39.5% 37.7% 31.4%
Risk-free Rate of Return 4.66% 5.24% 6.40%
Dividend Yield .25% .30% .50%

Black-Scholes Value 44.6% 44.5% 41.6%

The Company elected to account for terminations when they occur rather than include an attrition factor into its model.

In addition to the employee incentive plans disclosed above, the
Company registered 600,000 Common Shares relating to stock 
options granted to directors of the Company, which have the same
vesting, exercise and contract terms as the employee stock option
awards. During 2002, 2001 and 2000, the Company granted options

for 23,571 shares, 38,853 shares and 71,847 shares, respectively, to
the non-employee directors. As of December 31, 2002, 2001 and
2000, the directors stock options outstanding and exercisable were
343,044 shares, 385,473 shares and 414,468 shares, respectively.

A summary of all employee stock option activity during the years ended December 31 follows:

2002 2001 2000

Weighted Weighted Weighted
Number of Average Number of Average Number of Average

Options Outstanding Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price

Beginning of year 12,682,380 $ 23.81 13,576,176 $ 20.53 13,375,389 $ 19.40
Add (deduct):
Granted 1,194,192 52.17 2,012,082 30.89 3,257,367 19.67
Exercised (1,464,862) 15.11 (2,437,755) 10.47 (2,036,772) 8.53
Cancelled (464,439) 30.81 (468,123) 28.58 (1,019,808) 26.93

End of year 11,947,271 $ 27.44 12,682,380 $ 23.81 13,576,176 $ 20.53
Exercisable, end of year 4,542,722 $ 17.19 4,206,609 $ 13.19 4,633,842 $ 10.30
Available, end of year 6,988,479 7,739,682 10,876,707
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In 2002 and 2001, the Company granted to certain senior managers
options, which in addition to having a fixed vesting date, contain a 
provision for accelerated vesting based on achieving predetermined
objectives. To calculate the fair value of these options awarded, the
Company used the assumptions above, except for an eight-year 
option term, based on the exercise pattern of this group of employees.

These assumptions produced a Black-Scholes value of 51.5% and
51.1% for 2002 and 2001, respectively.

The amounts charged to income for incentive compensation plans,
attributable to executive cash bonus programs for key members of
management and a gainsharing program for all other employees, were
$169.4 million in 2002, $128.3 million in 2001 and $8.3 million in 2000.

9 Segment Information

The Company writes personal automobile and other specialty prop-
erty-casualty insurance and provides related services throughout the
United States. The Company’s Personal Lines segment writes insur-
ance for private passenger automobiles and recreation vehicles, and
is generated either by an agent or written directly by the Company.
The Personal Lines-Agent channel includes business written by the
Company’s network of more than 30,000 independent insurance
agencies and strategic alliance business relationships (other insur-
ance companies, financial institutions, employers and national bro-
kerage agencies). The Personal Lines-Direct channel includes
business written through 1-800-PROGRESSIVE, online at progres-
sive.com and on behalf of affinity groups. The Personal Lines 
segment, which includes both the Agent and Direct channels, 
are managed at a local level and structured into six regions. Each
business area has a business leader and a product team, with local
product managers at the state or regional level. 

The Company’s Commercial Auto segment writes primary liabil-
ity, physical damage and other auto-related insurance for automo-
biles and trucks owned by small businesses. During 2002, the
Company began separately reporting the Commercial Auto business

from its other businesses and restated all prior periods discussed in
this report.

The Company’s other businesses include writing lenders’ collateral
protection and directors’ and officers’ liability insurance and providing
insurance-related services, mainly processing CAIP business. 

All revenues are generated from external customers and the Com-
pany does not have a reliance on any major customer.

The Company evaluates segment profitability based on pretax 
underwriting and service profit (loss). Expense allocations are based
on certain assumptions and estimates; stated segment operating 
results would change if different methods were applied. The Com-
pany does not allocate assets, investment income, interest expense
or income taxes to operating segments. In addition, the Company
does not separately identify depreciation and amortization expense
by segment and such disclosure would be impracticable. Company-
wide depreciation and amortization expense was $83.9 million in
2002, $81.0 million in 2001 and $77.6 million in 2000. The accounting
policies of the operating segments are the same as those 
described in Note 1 – Reporting and Accounting Policies.

Following are the operating results for the years ended December 31:

2002 2001 2000

Pretax Pretax Pretax
(millions) Revenues Profit (Loss) Revenues Profit (Loss) Revenues Profit (Loss)

Personal Lines–Agent $5,542.7 $ 388.0 $4,706.8 $ 251.2 $4,643.4 $ (176.0)
Personal Lines–Direct 2,365.1 203.8 1,787.0 40.9 1,220.6 (128.7)

Total Personal Lines1 7,907.8 591.8 6,493.8 292.1 5,864.0 (304.7)
Commercial Auto Business 880.0 80.0 552.3 45.7 384.9 12.8
Other businesses2 130.0 19.1 140.4 13.0 120.0 8.5
Investments3 376.6 365.1 301.7 289.0 402.1 393.0
Interest expense — (74.6) — (52.2) — (77.8)

$9,294.4 $ 981.4 $7,488.2 $ 587.6 $6,771.0 $ 31.8

1Personal automobile insurance accounted for 93% of the total Personal Lines segment net premiums written in 2002, 2001 and 2000.
2For 2000, pretax profit includes the realization of a $4.2 million foreign currency translation loss associated with the substantial liquidation of the Company’s foreign
subsidiary. 

3Revenues represent recurring investment income and net realized gains/losses on securities; pretax profit is net of investment expenses.
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11 Litigation

The Company is named as defendant in various lawsuits generally
relating to its insurance operations. All legal actions relating to claims
made under insurance policies are considered by the Company in 
establishing its loss and loss adjustment expense reserves. 

The Company is also named as defendant in a number of putative
class action lawsuits. Other insurance companies face many of these
same issues. The lawsuits discussed below are in various stages of
development. The Company plans to contest these suits vigorously
and pursue settlement negotiations in those cases for which it deems
it appropriate to do so. The outcome of these cases, excluding those
where a settlement agreement has been reached and approved by
the court, is uncertain at this time. In accordance with GAAP, the Com-
pany is only permitted to establish loss reserves for lawsuits when it
is probable that a loss has been incurred and the Company can rea-
sonably estimate its potential exposure. 

There are currently four putative class action lawsuits pending
against the Company in various state courts seeking actual and puni-
tive damages and alleging breach of contract and fraud because of
the Company’s specification of after-market (non-original equipment

manufacturer) replacement parts in the repair of insured or claimant
vehicles. Plaintiffs in these suits allege that after-market parts are 
inferior to replacement parts manufactured by the vehicle’s original
manufacturer and that the use of such parts fails to restore the dam-
aged vehicle to its “pre-loss” condition, as required by their insurance
policies. The Company does not consider a loss from these cases to
be probable and estimable, and is unable to estimate a range of loss,
if any, at this time. 

The Company is defending seven putative class action lawsuits
in various state courts seeking damages from the Company alleging
breach of contract for failing to pay inherent diminished value of 
insureds’ vehicles under the collision, comprehensive or uninsured
motorist property damage provisions of their auto policies. Six of
these cases are pending in Texas. Inherent diminished value is 
defined by plaintiffs as the difference between the market value of the
insured automobile before an accident and the market value after
proper repair. Plaintiffs allege that they are entitled to the payment of
inherent diminished value under the terms of their insurance policies.
In February 2002, the Company reached an agreement to settle its

The components of other comprehensive income (loss) for the years ended December 31 were as follows:

2002 2001 2000

Tax Tax Tax
(Provision) After (Provision) After (Provision) After

(millions) Pretax Benefit Tax Pretax Benefit Tax Pretax Benefit Tax

Unrealized gains (losses)
arising during period:

Available-for-sale: 
fixed maturities $ 240.9 $ (84.3) $ 156.6 $ 17.0 $ (5.9) $ 11.1 $ 191.3 $ (67.0) $ 124.3
equity securities (137.8) 48.2 (89.6) 40.9 (14.3) 26.6 (69.8) 24.4 (45.4)

Reclassification adjustment:1

Available-for-sale:
fixed maturities (13.8) 4.7 (9.1) 16.7 (5.8) 10.9 (30.9) 10.7 (20.2)
equity securities (26.2) 9.2 (17.0) 5.2 (1.8) 3.4 21.8 (7.6) 14.2

Net unrealized gains (losses) 63.1 (22.2) 40.9 79.8 (27.8) 52.0 112.4 (39.5) 72.9
Hedges on forecasted 

transactions2 3.8 (1.3) 2.5 14.2 (5.0) 9.2 — — —
Foreign currency 

translation adjustment3 — — — — — — 4.2 — 4.2
Other comprehensive

income $ 66.9 $ (23.5) $ 43.4 $ 94.0 $ (32.8) $ 61.2 $ 116.6 $ (39.5) $ 77.1

1 Represents adjustments for gains (losses) realized in net income for securities held in the portfolio at December 31 of the preceding year.
2Entered into for the purpose of managing interest rate  risk associated with debt issuances. See Note 4 – Debt. The Company expects to reclassify $1.5 million into 
income within the next 12 months. 

3 Foreign currency translation adjustments have no tax effect.

10 Other Comprehensive Income
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Georgia diminution in value case for $19.8 million, plus administra-
tive costs. The Company believes that Georgia law on diminution in
value is an anomaly and has successfully defended several of these
cases in other jurisdictions. Accordingly, the Company does not con-
sider a loss from the remaining cases to be probable and estimable,
and is unable to estimate a range of loss, if any, at this time. 

There are five putative class action lawsuits pending against the
Company in Florida challenging the legal propriety of the Company’s
payment of preferred provider rates on personal injury protection (PIP)
claims. The primary issue is whether the Company violated Florida
law by paying (PIP) medical expense claims at preferred provider
rates. The Company has established a loss reserve in connection with 
certain of these cases. For those cases where a reserve has been 
established, the Company believes that any ultimate disposition of
these lawsuits for amounts in excess of the current reserve will not
materially affect the Company’s financial condition, cash flows or 
results of operations. As to the remaining cases, the Company does
not consider a loss to be probable and estimable, and is unable to
estimate a range of loss, if any, at this time. 

There are currently four putative class actions pending against the
Company, which challenge the Company’s use of certain automated
database vendors to assist in valuing total loss claims. Plaintiffs al-
lege that these databases systematically undervalue total loss claims
to the detriment of insureds. The plaintiffs are seeking actual and puni-
tive damages. The Company has established a loss reserve in con-
nection with certain of these cases. For those cases where a reserve
has been established, the Company believes that any ultimate dis-
position of these lawsuits for amounts in excess of the current reserve
will not materially affect the Company’s financial condition, cash flows
or results of operations. As to the remaining cases, the Company does
not consider a loss to be probable and estimable, and is unable to
estimate a range of loss, if any, at this time. 

The Company is currently defending five lawsuits involving worker
classification issues. These lawsuits challenge the Company’s ex-
empt employee classification under the federal Fair Labor Standards
Act and/or various state laws. In November 2002, the Company
reached an agreement to settle its lawsuit relating to the classifica-
tion of the Company’s California claims employees as exempt work-
ers for purposes of state wage and hour laws for an amount not to
exceed $10 million. This class action lawsuit was based on Califor-
nia-specific law. The Company continues to believe that its classifi-
cation of claim representatives as exempt workers is appropriate

under federal law. Accordingly, the Company does not consider a loss
from the remaining cases to be probable and estimable, and is 
unable to estimate a range of loss, if any, at this time. 

In July 2002, the Company settled a nationwide class action law-
suit challenging one of the Company’s claim adjustment practices,
known as the charging of “betterment,” in the adjustment of first party
physical damage (vehicle damage) claims. Specifically, it was alleged
that the Company made improper adjustments for depreciation and
physical condition. This settlement has received trial court approval
and the claims process is complete. 

The Company is currently defending five putative class actions
challenging the subsidiaries’ alternative commissions programs.
Under these programs, the Company’s independent insurance agen-
cies were able to offer its insurance products at different commission
levels. In July 2002, the Company reached a nationwide settlement
of these cases. The settlement, when final, will result in the payment
of approximately $60 million, including the costs of settlement and 
attorneys’ fees. This class action settlement has received trial court
approval and the claims process is complete. The settlement of these
cases is currently being appealed by various objectors. On December
23, 2002, a case was filed in Mississippi on behalf of 19 individuals who
opted-out of the nationwide settlement. This case also challenges
the alternative commissions programs. The Company does not 
consider a loss from this case to be probable and estimable, and is
unable to estimate a range of loss, if any, at this time. 

The Company is currently defending six cases challenging certain
aspects of the Company’s use of credit information and notice 
requirements under the federal Fair Credit Reporting Act. Three of
these cases are putative national class actions, one is a state-
specific class action that was certified in December 2002, and two
are individual cases. The Company does not consider loss from these
cases to be probable and estimable, and is unable to estimate a range
of loss, if any, at this time. 

There are currently two putative class actions pending against the
Company challenging the Company’s use of automated database
vendors to assist in evaluating certain first party bodily injury claims.
The plaintiffs allege that Progressive uses biased third party vendors
to analyze medical bills and determine whether the treatment and/or
expenses are “reasonable” and “necessary.” The Company does not
consider a loss from these cases to be probable and estimable, and
is unable to estimate a range of loss, if any, at this time. 
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12 Commitments and Contingencies

The Company has operating lease commitments and service agreements with terms greater than one year, some with options to renew at the
end of the contract periods. 

The minimum commitments under noncancelable agreements at December 31, 2002, are as follows:

(millions)
Operating Service 

Year Leases Contracts Total
2003 $ 62.3 $ 74.5 $ 136.8
2004 46.6 56.4 103.0
2005 27.8 20.2 48.0
2006 18.9 — 18.9
2007 12.7 — 12.7
Thereafter 33.4 — 33.4

Total expense incurred by the Company was:

(millions)
Operating Service 

Year Leases Contracts Total
2002 $ 71.0 $ 66.7 $ 137.7
2001 69.9 49.9 119.8
2000 61.5 38.5 100.0

During 2000, the Company accrued $20.0 million related to the ter-
mination of a strategic alliance relationship. As a result of this disso-
lution, a related reinsurance agreement terminated and the Company
was entitled to the run-off of all of the premium written under this
agreement. The amount accrued represents the Company’s best 
estimate of the share of the net present value of the future profit on
that business that the other party was entitled to receive upon this
termination. There are no contingent obligations associated with this
arrangement.

During 2002, the Company incurred $21.2 million of guaranty 
fund assessments, compared to $14.6 million in 2001 and $2.0 

million in 2000. At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the Company had 
$17.9 million and $11.5 million, respectively, reserved for future 
assessments on current insolvencies. The Company believes that
any assessment in excess of its current reserves will not materially
affect the Company’s financial condition, cash flows or results 
of operations.

As of December 31, 2002, the Company had open investment
funding commitments of $26.9 million. The Company had no uncol-
lateralized lines or letters of credit as of December 31, 2002 or 2001.
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13 Fair Value of Financial Instruments

14 Related Party Transactions

In January 2003, March 2002 and October 2001, the Company 
repurchased 400,000, 6,182 and 30,866, respectively, of its Common
Shares, $1.00 par value, from Peter B. Lewis, the Company’s Chair-
man of the Board, at $52.23, $53.92 and $47.82, respectively, on a
split-adjusted basis. The prices per share equaled the then current

market prices of the Company’s stock as quoted on the New York
Stock Exchange. These transactions are part of the Company’s 
ongoing repurchase program to eliminate the effect of dilution 
created by equity compensation awards.

Information about specific valuation techniques and related fair value detail is provided in Note 1 – Reporting and Accounting Policies, Note
2 – Investments and Note 4 – Debt. The cost and market value of the financial instruments as of December 31 are summarized as follows:

2002 2001

Market Market
(millions) Cost Value Cost Value

Investments:
Available-for-sale: fixed maturities $7,409.4 $7,712.5 $5,873.0 $5,949.0

preferred stocks 631.9 656.7 675.4 713.9
common equities 1,425.3 1,347.3 1,263.7 1,336.0

Short-term investments 567.8 567.8 227.4 227.4
Debt (1,489.0) (1,588.9) (1,095.7) (1,092.5)
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The consolidated financial statements and the related notes, together
with the supplemental information, should be read in conjunction with
the following discussion of the consolidated financial condition and
results of operations.

Financial Condition The Progressive Corporation is a holding com-
pany and does not have any revenue producing operations of its own.
It receives cash through borrowings, equity sales, subsidiary dividends
and other transactions, and may use the proceeds to contribute to the
capital of its insurance subsidiaries in order to support premium
growth, to repurchase its Common Shares, to retire its outstanding 
indebtedness, to pay dividends and for other business purposes.

During 2002, the Company repurchased 3,608,098 of its Common
Shares, with 136,182 Common Shares repurchased prior to its 3-for-
1 stock split, effective April 22, 2002, and 3,471,916 repurchased after
the split. The total cost to repurchase these shares was $214.3 
million with an average cost, on a split-adjusted basis, of $55.23 per
share (the Company did not split its treasury shares). The 2002 re-
purchases included 19,294 Common Shares (average cost of $47.10
per share) repurchased to satisfy obligations under the Company’s
benefit plans. During the three-year period ended December 31, 2002,
the Company repurchased 4,841,386 of its Common Shares at a total
cost of $352.4 million; these repurchases included 124,216 Common
Shares repurchased to satisfy obligations under the Company’s ben-
efit plans. See the Incentive Compensation Plans disclosure for fur-
ther discussion on the Company’s policy regarding share repurchases.

During the three-year period ended December 31, 2002, The Pro-
gressive Corporation received $329.2 million of dividends from its
subsidiaries, net of capital contributions made to these subsidiaries.
The regulatory restrictions on subsidiary dividends are described in
Note 7 – Statutory Information, to the financial statements. 

The Company has substantial capital resources and is unaware of
any trends, events or circumstances not disclosed herein that are rea-
sonably likely to affect its capital resources in a material way. The
Company has $250 million available for issuance of debt securities
under a shelf registration statement filed with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission (SEC) in October 2002 (see discussion below). 

In October 2002, the Company filed a shelf registration statement
with the SEC for the issuance of up to $650 million of debt securities,
which included $150 million of unissued debt securities from a shelf
registration filed in November 2001. The registration statement was
declared effective in October 2002, and, in November 2002, the Com-
pany issued $400.0 million of 6.25% Senior Notes due 2032 under
the shelf. The net proceeds of $398.6 million, which included $5.1
million received under a hedge on forecasted transactions that the
Company entered into in anticipation of the debt issuance, are 

intended to be used for general corporate purposes. A portion of the
net proceeds may be used to retire the Company’s outstanding
6.60% Notes due 2004 with a principal amount of $200 million. 

In November 2001, the Company filed a shelf registration state-
ment with the SEC for the issuance of up to $500 million of debt 
securities. The registration statement was declared effective in 
November 2001, and, in December 2001, the Company issued $350.0
million of 6.375% Senior Notes due 2012 under the shelf. The net 
proceeds of $365.4 million, which included $18.4 million received
under a hedge on forecasted transactions that the Company entered
into in anticipation of the debt issuance, were intended to be used for
general corporate purposes. The $150 million remaining under the
shelf was rolled into the shelf registration statement filed with the SEC
in October 2002.

During the last three years, the Company issued $750.0 million and
repaid $301.7 million of debt securities. See Note 4 – Debt, for further
discussion on the Company’s current outstanding debt. The Com-
pany’s debt to total capital (debt plus equity) ratio is 28%. 

Based on the information reported above, management believes
that the Company has substantial capital resources and sufficient
borrowing capacity to support current and anticipated growth. 

The Company’s insurance operations create liquidity by collecting
and investing premiums from new and renewal business in advance
of paying claims. For the three years ended December 31, 2002, 
operations generated positive cash flows of $3.97 billion and cash
flows are expected to be positive in both the short-term and reason-
ably foreseeable future. The Company’s investment portfolio is highly
liquid and consists substantially of readily marketable, investment-
grade securities.

Total capital expenditures for the three years ended December 31,
2002, aggregated $295.1 million. During this period, the Company
constructed a five building, 732,300 square foot, corporate office
complex in Mayfield Village, Ohio. Construction was completed in the
first quarter of 2001 at a total cost of $129.0 million. The Company is
currently planning to construct a 322,000 square foot call center com-
plex in Colorado Springs, Colorado at an estimated total project cost
of $62 million. The project is scheduled to be completed in 2004. In
addition, the Company plans to expand its vehicle claims repair serv-
ice by 20 additional sites in 2003. The Company expects to incur an
estimated $3.6 million in lease costs related to these sites in 2003.
These projects are funded through operating cash flows.

Other than the items disclosed in Note 2 – Investments and Note
12 – Commitments and Contingencies regarding open investment
funding commitments and operating leases and service agreements,
respectively, the Company does not have any off-balance-sheet
arrangements.

The Progressive Corporation and Subsidiaries
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A summary of the Company’s contractual obligations as of December 31, 2002, follows:

Payments due by period
Less than More than

(millions) Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years

Debt (Note 4) $ 1,506.0 $ — $ 206.0 $ 100.0 $ 1,200.0
Operating Leases (Note 12) 201.7 62.3 74.4 31.6 33.4
Service Contracts (Note 12) 151.1 74.5 76.6 — —

Total $ 1,858.8 $ 136.8 $ 357.0 $ 131.6 $ 1,233.4

Investments The Company invests in fixed-maturity, equity and
short-term securities and manages its portfolio to an 85% fixed 
income and 15% equity target allocation. The Company’s investment
strategy recognizes its need to maintain capital adequate to support
its insurance operations. The Company evaluates the risk/reward

tradeoffs of investment opportunities, measuring their effects on 
stability, diversity, overall quality and liquidity of the investment 
portfolio. Investments in the Company’s portfolio have varying 
degrees of risk. The market value of the portfolio was as follows:

(millions) December 31, 2002 December 31, 2001

Investment-Grade Fixed Maturities:
Short/Intermediate-Term $ 7,932.0 77.1% $5,827.3 70.8%
Long-Term1 168.3 1.6 202.3 2.5
Non-Investment-Grade Fixed Maturities2 180.0 1.8 146.8 1.8

Total Fixed Maturities 8,280.3 80.5 6,176.4 75.1
Preferred Stocks3 656.7 6.4 713.9 8.7
Term Trust Certificates — — 50.1 .6

Total Fixed Income 8,937.0 86.9 6,940.4 84.4

Common Stocks4 1,275.0 12.4 1,201.0 14.6
Other Risk Investments5 72.3 .7 84.9 1.0

Equity Risk Securities 1,347.3 13.1 1,285.9 15.6
Total Portfolio6 $ 10,284.3 100.0% $8,226.3 100.0%

1Includes securities with maturities of 10 years or greater. Asset-backed securities are reported based upon their projected cash flows. All other securities which do not 
have a single maturity date are reported at average maturity. See Note 2 – Investments.

2Non-investment-grade fixed-maturity securities offer the Company higher returns and added diversification but may involve greater risks, often related to 
creditworthiness, solvency and relative liquidity of the secondary trading market.

3Comprised of over 95% of fixed-rate preferred stocks with mechanisms that are expected to provide an opportunity to liquidate at par.
4Common stocks are traded on nationally recognized securities exchanges.
5Includes private equity investments and limited partnership interests in private equity and mezzanine investment funds which have no off-balance-sheet exposure or
contingent obligations. See Note 2 – Investments for open funding commitments. 

6Includes $1.3 billion of securities in the portfolio of a consolidated, non-insurance subsidiary of the holding company; composition is similar to the consolidated portfolio. 
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The fixed-income portfolio includes fixed-maturity securities, preferred
stocks, short-term investments and term trust certificates (discussed
below). The primary market risk exposure to the fixed-income portfo-
lio is interest rate risk, which is limited by managing the portfolio dura-
tion to a defined range of 1.8 to 5 years. The distribution of maturities
and convexity are monitored on a regular basis. Interest rate risk 
includes the risk from movements in the underlying market rates and
in credit spreads of the respective sectors of debt securities held. The
fixed-income portfolio had a duration of 3.2 years at December 31,
2002, compared to 3.7 years at December 31, 2001. Included in 
fixed-income securities are net unsettled securities acquisitions of

$112.2 million at December 31, 2002 and $3.1 million of net unsettled
security dispositions at December 31, 2001. Excluding these unsettled
securities transactions, the allocation of fixed-income securities at 
December 31, 2002, was 86.8% of the portfolio, slightly higher than the
target allocation of 85%, but within the Company’s normal range of 
variation; at December 31, 2001, the allocation was 84.4%.

Term trust certificates, the common shares of closed-end bond
funds, have the risk/reward characteristics of the underlying bonds
and, along with the equity risk securities, are classified as Common
Equities on the balance sheet.

Included in the fixed-income portfolio, the Company held asset-backed securities at December 31, 2002, which were comprised of 
the following:

Market Duration Unrealized
(millions) Value (years) Rating1 Gains2

Collateralized Mortgage Obligations – Residential (CMO):
Sequential Bonds $ 327.6 1.05 AAA $ 8.9
Planned Amortization Class Bonds 359.3 .95 AAA 19.1

686.9 1.00 AAA 28.0
Commercial Mortgage-Backed Obligations (CMB)3 889.6 4.14 AA- 68.3
CMB-Interest-Only Certificates 263.4 3.08 AAA 8.1

1,153.0 3.90 AA 76.4
Other asset-backed securities4 710.5 1.86 AAA- 25.2
Total asset-backed securities5 $ 2,550.4 2.55 AA+ $ 129.6

1Weighted average Nationally Recognized Securities Rating Organization.
2The single largest unrealized loss in any individual CMO security was $.1 million and in any CMB security was $2.2 million at December 31, 2002.
3Individual security sensitivity to prepayment risk is reduced by prepayment lock out and yield maintenance provisions.
4Home equity loans represent $384.8 million, or 54.2%, and manufactured housing loans represent $100.8 million, or 14.2%, of the other asset-backed securities; 
the remainder of the portfolio is comprised of equipment leases, auto loans, credit card receivables and other structured loans.

5The majority of asset-backed securities are liquid with available market quotes and contain no residual interests. 

An additional exposure to the fixed-income portfolio is credit risk,
which is limited by managing to an average minimum credit quality
rating of A+, as defined by nationally recognized rating agencies, and
limiting non-investment-grade securities to a maximum of 5% of the

fixed-income portfolio. Concentration in single issuers is limited to
no more than 6% of the Company’s shareholders’ equity, except for
U.S. treasury and agency bonds; state general obligations are limited
to 12% of shareholders’ equity.

The quality distribution of the fixed-income portfolio was as follows:

Rating December 31, 2002 December 31, 2001

AAA 65.7% 58.0%
AA 8.2 10.6
A 12.6 15.3
BBB 11.3 14.0
Non Rated/Other 2.2 2.1

100.0% 100.0%
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The Company monitors the composition and performance of the
common stock portfolio to ensure compliance with the objectives. 

Common equities, which generally have greater risk and volatility
of market value, have a target allocation of 15% and may range from
0 to 25% of the portfolio. At December 31, 2002 and 2001, excluding
the net unsettled security transactions, these securities comprised
13.2% and 15.6%, respectively, of the total portfolio. Common stocks
are the majority of the common equity portfolio and are managed 
externally to track the Russell 1000 index within +/- 50 basis points.

To maintain high correlation with the Russell 1000, the Company holds
approximately 700 of the common stocks comprising the index. 
Individual holdings are measured based on their contribution to the
correlation with the index. The Company’s common equity allocation
and management strategy are intended to provide diversification for
the total portfolio and focuses on the change in value of the equity
portfolio relative to the change in value of the index on an annual basis
as noted in the following table:

Market Value at Market Value at Total
(millions) December 31, 2002 December 31, 2001 Return1

Common Stocks2 $ 1,275.0 $ 1,201.0 (21.5)%
Russell 1000 Index3 466.2 604.9 (21.7)

1Includes gross dividends reinvested and price appreciation/depreciation.
2The market value at December 31, 2002, includes appreciation/depreciation in the value of the underlying securities as well as dividend income received and net cash 
infusions/withdrawals made during the year needed to maintain the Company’s 85%/15% fixed income to equity allocation.

3This broad-based index, which is used for comparative benchmarking, incepted December 31, 1986, with a base valuation of $130. Amounts shown represent changes 
in valuation based on growth and declines of the index members.

Other risk investments include private equity investments and limited
partnership interests in private equity and mezzanine investment
funds which have no off-balance-sheet exposure or contingent obli-
gations, except for the open funding commitments discussed in Note
2 – Investments. Exposures are evaluated individually and as a whole,
considering the effects of cross correlation. The Company is no longer
initiating investments in these types of securities and expects to 
reduce its current holdings over time.

The Company monitors the value at risk of the fixed-income 
and equity portfolios as well as the total portfolio to evaluate the 
potential maximum expected loss. For further information, see the
Quantitative Market Risk Disclosures supplementally provided in this
Annual Report. 

As of December 31, 2002, the Company’s portfolio had $249.9 
million in net unrealized gains, compared to $186.8 million at year-
end 2001. The increase was the result of declining interest rates and
the recognition of $78.6 million of net realized losses in 2002, offset
by the general decline in the equity markets. The realized losses 
during 2002 were primarily the result of write-downs in securities 
determined to have an other-than-temporary decline in market value
and rebalancing of the common stock portfolio to the Russell 1000
index during the year. The weighted average fully taxable equivalent
book yield of the portfolio was 5.6% for the year ended December 31,
2002, 6.2% for 2001 and 6.4% for 2000. The pretax recurring book
yield of the portfolio was 5.1%, 5.6% and 5.7% for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Included in the net realized gains/losses on securities for the years
ended 2002, 2001 and 2000, are write-downs on securities deter-
mined to have an other-than-temporary decline in market value. The

Company continually monitors its portfolio for pricing changes, which
might indicate potential impairments and, on a quarterly basis, 
performs a detailed review of securities with unrealized losses based
on predetermined criteria. In such cases, changes in market value are
evaluated to determine the extent to which such changes are attribut-
able to (i) fundamental factors specific to the issuer, such as financial
conditions, business prospects or other factors or (ii) market-related
factors, such as interest rates or equity market declines.

Fixed income and equity securities with declines attributable to 
issuer-specific fundamentals are reviewed to identify all available 
evidence, circumstances and influences to estimate the potential 
for and timing of recovery of the investment’s impairment. An other-
than-temporary impairment loss is deemed to have occurred when
the potential for and timing of recovery does not satisfy the guidance
set forth in Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) 59, “Noncurrent 
Marketable Equity Securities,” Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt
and Equity Securities” and other related guidance.

For fixed income investments with unrealized losses due to 
market or industry-related declines where the Company has the 
intent and ability to hold the investment for the period of time neces-
sary to recover a significant portion of the investment’s original prin-
cipal and interest obligation, declines are not deemed to qualify as
other than temporary. The Company’s policy for equity securities with
market-related declines is to recognize impairment losses on indi-
vidual securities with losses that are not reasonably expected to be
recovered under historical market conditions when the security has
been in a loss position for three consecutive quarters. 
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When a security in the Company’s investment portfolio has an 
unrealized loss in market value that is deemed to be other than
temporary, the Company reduces the book value of such security
to its current market value, recognizing the decline as a realized loss

in the income statement. All other unrealized gains or losses are 
reflected in shareholders’ equity. The write-down activity for the
years ended December 31 was as follows:

Write-downs Write-downs
Total On Securities On Securities

(millions) Write-downs Subsequently Sold Held at Period End

2002

Fixed income $ 45.6 $ 19.7 $ 25.9
Common equities1 156.5 45.9 110.6

Total portfolio $ 202.1 $ 65.6 $ 136.5

2001

Fixed income $ 17.1 $ 4.2 $ 12.9
Common equities 42.9 19.8 23.1

Total portfolio $ 60.0 $ 24.0 $ 36.0

2000

Fixed income $ 3.4 $ 3.4 $ —
Common equities 43.1 — 43.1

Total portfolio $ 46.5 $ 3.4 $ 43.1

1At December 31, 2002, the Company had $3.6 million of losses on similar securities that have only been in a loss position for two consecutive quarters.

Market related write-downs on equity securities represent the Company’s largest component of write-downs in 2002. The following is
a summary of equity security market write-downs by sector (both market-related and issuer specific):

(millions)
Amount of Equity Portfolio Russell 1000 Russell 1000 Remaining Gross

Sector Write-down Allocation Allocation Sector Return Unrealized Loss

Auto and Transportation $ 3.6 2.5% 2.2% (14.7)% $ 1.2
Consumer Discretionary 24.9 12.4 14.6 (24.2) 15.4
Consumer Staples 1.2 8.9 8.1 (5.3) 6.1
Financial Services 6.2 22.8 22.8 (15.3) 32.7
Health Care 15.9 14.6 14.8 (20.4) 20.3
Integrated Oil — 4.6 4.2 (12.7) 9.0
Materials and Processing — 3.6 3.4 (8.6) 3.1
Other Energy 2.6 1.4 1.4 (20.6) .6
Producer Durables 1.2 3.7 3.7 (15.9) 4.9
Technology 50.8 12.5 13.4 (38.7) 16.9
Utilities 16.2 8.2 7.4 (33.1) 20.4
Other Equities 20.7 4.8 4.0 (29.6) 1.8
Total Common Stocks 143.3 100.0% 100.0% (21.7)% 132.4
Other Risk Assets 13.2 .9

Total Common Equities $ 156.5 $ 133.3

Trading securities are entered into for the purpose of near-term profit
generation. At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the Company did not
hold any trading securities. Net realized losses on trading securities
for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 were $0, $6.5
million and $19.0 million, respectively. Trading securities are not 
material to the Company’s financial condition, cash flows or results
of operations and are reported within the available-for-sale portfolio
rather than separately disclosed.

From time to time, the Company invests in derivative instruments,
which are primarily used to manage the risks and enhance the returns
of the available-for-sale portfolio. This is accomplished by modifying
the basis, duration, interest rate or foreign currency characteristics
of the portfolio, hedged securities or hedged cash flows. During 2002,
the Company recognized net losses on derivatives used to manage
risk in the available-for-sale portfolio of $0, compared to $2.7 million
in 2001 and $2.3 million in 2000. During 2002 and 2001, the Company
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entered into hedges on forecasted transactions in anticipation of its
debt issuances. See Note 2 – Investments and Note 4 – Debt for 
further discussion of these hedges. The Company had no open
positions at December 31, 2002.

Derivative instruments may also be used for trading purposes. 
Derivatives used for trading purposes generated net gains (losses) of
$(.1) million in 2002, $1.9 million in 2001 and $2.6 million in 2000, and
are included in the available-for-sale portfolio. For all derivative 
positions, net cash requirements are limited to changes in market 
values which may vary based upon changes in interest rates and other
factors. Exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying value; collat-
eral may be required to limit credit risk.

During 2002, the Company entered into repurchase commitment
transactions, whereby the Company loans Treasury or U.S. Govern-
ment agency securities to accredited brokerage firms in exchange
for cash equal to the fair market value of the securities. These inter-
nally managed transactions are typically overnight arrangements. The
cash proceeds are invested in AA or higher financial institution paper
with yields that exceed the Company’s interest obligation on the 
borrowed cash. The Company is able to borrow the cash at low rates
since the securities loaned are in short supply. The Company’s inter-
est rate exposure does not increase or decrease since the borrowing
and investing periods match. During the year ended December 31,
2002, the Company’s largest single outstanding balance of repur-
chase commitments was $1,271.6 million which was open for one
business day, with an average daily balance of $549.8 million for the
year. The Company had no open repurchase commitments at 
December 31, 2002 and 2001. The Company earned income of $2.8
million, $4.1 million and $.9 million on repurchase commitments 
during 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Results of Operations Direct premiums written increased 31% to
$9,665.7 million in 2002, compared to $7,379.2 million in 2001 and
$6,402.1 million in 2000. For 2002, 2001 and 2000, net premiums writ-
ten increased 30%, 17% and 1%, respectively, to $9,452.0 million,
$7,260.1 million and $6,196.1 million. The difference between direct
and net premiums written is attributable to premiums written under
state-mandated involuntary Commercial Auto Insurance Procedures
(CAIP), for which the Company retains no indemnity risk, of $119.1
million in 2002, $80.5 million in 2001 and $50.9 million in 2000, and
reinsurance the Company maintains in its auto and non-auto pro-
grams. Rate adequacy, improved customer retention and new busi-
ness growth drove the increase in premium growth in 2002. Prior
years’ premium growth was negatively affected by the shift from 12-
month to 6-month policies. At year-end 2002 and 2001, substantially
all of the Company’s new auto policies were written for six-month
terms, compared to 80% at December 31, 2000. 

Premiums earned, which are a function of the premiums written in
the current and prior periods and are recognized into income over the
policy term using a mid-month convention, are not affected by the
shift in policy term. Therefore, during the transition period, the Com-
pany believes that net premiums earned was a more meaningful
measure of growth. For 2002, 2001 and 2000, premiums earned 
increased 24%, 13% and 12%, respectively. The majority of the
growth in 2002 was a result of an increase in policies in force, while
prior years’ growth was due primarily to increased rate levels. During
2002, the Company implemented 95 auto rate revisions in various
states, with aggregate filed rate changes of approximately 5% for its
Personal Lines business. The Company currently expects its rate
needs to be at this level, or slightly higher, in 2003.

For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, the Company generated net income of $667.3 million, $411.4 million and $46.1 mil-
lion, respectively. Following is a reconciliation of the Company’s net income to operating income:

2002 2001 2000

(millions, except per share amounts) $ Per Share $ Per Share $ Per Share

Net income $ 667.3 $ 2.99 $ 411.4 $ 1.83 $ 46.1 $ .21
Reconciling items (after-tax):

Net realized (gains) losses on securities 51.1 .23 72.7 .32 (11.0) (.05)
Nonrecurring items:

Termination of strategic alliance relationship — — — — 13.0 .06
Foreign currency translation loss — — — — 4.2 .02
Termination of defined benefit pension plan — — — — 2.0 .01
Severance and other costs1 — — 1.4 .01 1.1 —

Operating income $ 718.4 $ 3.22 $ 485.5 $ 2.16 $ 55.4 $ .25

12001 related to the Company’s reduction in force in New York; 2000 is associated with the Company’s reorganization at the general manager level. 
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The Company defines operating income, which is a non-GAAP
disclosure, as net income excluding the after-tax effect of net 
realized gains and losses on securities and nonrecurring items. By
excluding items which are not of a recurring nature, the Company 
believes that operating income provides a useful measure of the 
Company’s operating results and more accurately reflects the trends
in the Company’s financial performance. However, since operating 
income is not a term defined by GAAP, the Company’s operating 
results may not be comparable to similarly titled measures reported
by other companies. The increase in operating income in 2002 is 
primarily a result of improved underwriting results. The GAAP com-
bined ratio (CR) was 92.4 in 2002, 95.2 in 2001 and 104.4 in 2000. 

The Company’s Personal Lines business units write insurance for
private passenger automobiles and recreation vehicles and currently
represent 88% of the Company’s total net premiums written. Personal
Lines net premiums written grew 29% in 2002, grew 15% in 2001 and
declined 1% in 2000; net premiums earned grew 22% in 2002 and
11% in both 2001 and 2000. The Personal Lines business is gener-
ated either by an Agent or written directly by the Company. The Agent
channel includes business written by the Company’s network of
30,000 independent insurance agencies and through strategic 
alliance business relationships (other insurance companies, financial

institutions, employers and national brokerage agencies). Direct 
business includes business written through 1-800-PROGRESSIVE,
online at progressive.com and on behalf of affinity groups. 

The Company’s Commercial Auto Business unit writes primary 
liability, physical damage and other auto-related insurance for auto-
mobiles and trucks owned by small businesses. The Commercial Auto
Business represents 11% of the Company’s total year-to-date net
premiums written. Commercial Auto net premiums written grew 51%
in 2002 and 2001 and 38% in 2000. Although the Commercial Auto
Business differs from Personal Lines auto, it requires the same 
fundamental skills that drive the Company’s Personal Lines auto 
business, which include disciplined underwriting and pricing, as well
as excellent claim service. The Company’s Commercial Auto 
Business is primarily distributed through the independent agent 
channel. The Company estimates that its Commercial Auto Business
currently ranks fifth in market share nationally based on data reported
by A. M. Best Company Inc.

The Company’s other businesses primarily include writing lenders’
collateral protection and directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
and providing insurance-related services, primarily processing 
CAIP business. 
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Underwriting results for the Company’s Personal Lines, including its channel components, the Commercial Auto Business and other
businesses were as follows:

(millions) 2002 2001 2000

Net Premiums Written

Personal Lines–Agent $ 5,832.7 $ 4,614.7 $ 4,358.4
Personal Lines–Direct 2,529.8 1,861.7 1,293.1

Total Personal Lines 8,362.5 6,476.4 5,651.5
Commercial Auto Business 1,002.9 665.7 442.0
Other businesses 86.6 118.0 102.6

Companywide $ 9,452.0 $ 7,260.1 $ 6,196.1

Net Premiums Earned

Personal Lines–Agent $ 5,542.7 $ 4,706.8 $ 4,643.4
Personal Lines–Direct 2,365.1 1,787.0 1,220.6

Total Personal Lines 7,907.8 6,493.8 5,864.0
Commercial Auto Business 880.0 552.3 384.8
Other businesses 95.7 115.7 99.6

Companywide $ 8,883.5 $ 7,161.8 $ 6,348.4

Personal Lines–Agent CR

Loss & loss adjustment expense ratio 72.0 74.8 85.0
Underwriting expense ratio 21.0 19.9 18.8

93.0 94.7 103.8

Personal Lines–Direct CR

Loss & loss adjustment expense ratio 69.1 71.8 80.9
Underwriting expense ratio 22.3 25.9 29.6

91.4 97.7 110.5

Personal Lines–Total CR

Loss & loss adjustment expense ratio 71.1 74.0 84.1
Underwriting expense ratio 21.4 21.5 21.1

92.5 95.5 105.2

Commercial Auto Business –CR

Loss & loss adjustment expense ratio 70.7 70.6 75.1
Underwriting expense ratio 20.2 21.1 21.6

90.9 91.7 96.7

Other Businesses–CR

Loss & loss adjustment expense ratio 56.7 60.6 56.8
Underwriting expense ratio 36.1 32.4 29.6

92.8 93.0 86.4

Companywide GAAP CR

Loss & loss adjustment expense ratio 70.9 73.5 83.2
Underwriting expense ratio 21.5 21.7 21.2

92.4 95.2 104.4

Companywide Accident Year

Loss & loss adjustment expense ratio 70.9 74.9 82.0

Auto Policies in Force (at December 31)

(thousands)

Agent – Auto 3,386 2,779 2,821
Direct – Auto 1,541 1,209 1,026
Other Personal Lines1 1,642 1,383 1,200

Total Personal Lines 6,569 5,371 5,047

Commercial Auto Business 289 209 170

1Includes insurance for motorcycles, recreation vehicles, mobile homes, watercraft, snowmobiles, homeowners and similar items.
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The Agent channel net premiums written increased 26% in 2002, com-
pared to 6% in 2001 and an 8% decrease in 2000. As discussed
above, the increase in net premiums written for 2002 was a result of
both an increase in new applications and strong renewals. In addition,
the Agent channel benefited from rate adequacy when competitors
were playing catch-up on rate all year. Net premiums earned increased
18%, 1% and 2% in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. In 2001 and
2000, the rate increases the Company had taken were partially offset
by decreases in Agent auto policies in force. Agent auto policies in
force increased 22% in 2002, and decreased 1% and 7% in 2001 and
2000, respectively. Continued growth in the Agent business can be
affected by competitor rate activity and local market conditions. The
Company was generally ahead of competitors in recognizing the 
increases in loss trends and filing necessary rate increases. Therefore,
as competitors subsequently raised rates, the Company experienced
an increase in its share of business generated in the Agent channel. 

The Company’s Direct channel net premiums written increased
36% in 2002, 44% in 2001 and 35% in 2000. Net premiums written
grew 39% and 41% for 2002 and 2001, respectively, excluding the
$37.7 million of previously ceded written premiums that were assumed
by the Company upon the commutation of a reinsurance agreement
that was part of a strategic alliance relationship that was terminated
in the first quarter 2001. This strategic alliance relationship was 
terminated by mutual agreement of the Company and the other party
because the business interests of the parties were no longer aligned.
In addition, the Company did not envision that this relationship would
help the Company in meeting its long-term profitability objectives.
The commutation of the reinsurance agreement was a natural and 
required result of terminating the relationship (see Note 12 – Com-
mitments and Contingencies).

The Direct channel net premiums earned grew 32%, 46% and 64%
in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The Company feels that 
continued growth in the Direct business is heavily dependent on the
success of the Company’s advertising and other marketing efforts,
realizing that price sensitivity is always a factor. The Company is 
advertising on a national basis and supplements its coverage by local
market media campaigns in over 80 designated marketing areas. 
Direct auto policies in force increased 27%, 18% and 45% for 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively.

Another important element affecting growth is customer retention.
The Company experienced very encouraging progress in retention in
both the Agent channel and the Direct channel in 2002. One meas-
ure of improvement in customer retention is policy life expectancy
(PLE), which is the estimate of the average length of time that a 
policy will remain in force before cancellation or non-renewal. In 2002,
the Company experienced about a 20% increase in PLE, with most
tiers in both channels contributing to the increase. The Company 
believes the improvement in the PLE is a function of internal process
improvements, smaller rate changes by the Company and an exter-
nal market where average premiums are increasing. Although it is 
difficult to identify the exact contribution of each component, the
Company believes that the increases in electronic payments and
quote accuracy, along with targeted messages sent at renewal 
explaining rate changes, are having a significant effect on the increase
in PLE. Since multiple factors affect retention, such as market 
conditions, competitors achieving rate adequacy and the Company’s
mix of business, the Company is unable to predict if retention will 
increase, decrease or remain the same in the future.

The Company’s Commercial Auto business net premiums written
increased 51% in both 2002 and 2001, compared to 38% in 2000.
The Company has seen the rate of growth slow during the second
half of 2002, but the Company is still benefiting from competitors 
raising rates and restricting the business they write. Should the hard
market continue into 2003, the Company would be able to increase
rates while still seeing a significant increase in unit growth. The Com-
pany continues to focus on writing insurance for small business autos
and trucks, with the majority of their customers insuring three or fewer
vehicles. Approximately 52% of the Company’s year-to-date Com-
mercial Auto net premiums written were generated in the light and
local commercial auto markets, which includes autos, vans and pick-
up trucks used by contractors, artisans, landscapers and a variety of
other small businesses. The remainder of the business was written in
the specialty commercial auto market, which includes dump trucks,
logging trucks and other short-haul commercial vehicles. The Com-
pany does not write in, and has no intention of re-entering, the long-
haul trucking market. There are many similarities between the
Company’s commercial and personal auto business; however, since
the commercial auto policies have higher limits than personal auto,
the Company continues to monitor this segment closely. Commer-
cial Auto net premiums earned increased 59% in 2002, compared to
44% in 2001 and 33% in 2000. Policies in force have increased 38%,
23% and 27% in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. 

During 2002, the Company generated an underwriting profit in 98%
of the U.S. Personal Lines markets where it writes (48 out of 49 
markets), compared to approximately 75% in 2001 and approximately
40% in 2000. The Company’s top five states, which account for 
almost 40% of the Company’s total Personal Lines net premiums 
written, all exceeded the Company’s profit goal of a 4% underwriting
profit. The Company will continue to monitor and adjust rates as
needed to meet its financial goals.

Claim costs, the Company’s most significant expense, represent
payments made and estimated future payments to be made to or on
behalf of its policyholders, including adjusting expenses needed to
settle claims. These costs include a loss estimate for future assign-
ments, based on current business, under state-mandated automo-
bile insurance programs. Claim costs are influenced by loss severity
and frequency and inflation. Accordingly, these anticipated changes
in loss costs are taken into account when the Company establishes
premium rates and loss reserves. Claim costs, expressed as a 
percentage of premiums earned, were 71% in 2002, compared to
74% in 2001 and 83% in 2000. 

The Company has seen a decline in frequency, which has been 
partially offset by an increase in severity. Although the Company 
cannot completely explain the drop in loss frequency, it believes that
this trend may have bottomed out. Overall, severity increased less than
five percent in 2002. The Company plans to be diligent in its 
efforts to recognize these increasing costs when setting rates and 
establishing loss reserves. During the year, the Company’s claims han-
dling quality improved, as indicated by the Company’s audits of claim
files, and the Company has increased its hiring and training of claim
representatives to handle the increase in the number of claims result-
ing from the Company’s growth. 

During 2002, the Company experienced $3.5 million of unfavorable
loss reserve development, compared to $99.0 million of favorable 
development in 2001 and $75.8 million of unfavorable development in
2000. During 2002, the Company made no significant change to the
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estimate of loss reserves recorded in prior years. A small decrease in
the Personal Lines loss reserves was offset by an increase in the 
Commercial Auto loss reserves. The favorable development in 2001
is primarily attributable to the settlement of claims at less than
amounts reserved, while the unfavorable development in 2000 
reflected the Company’s effort to fully recognize the loss trends that
were emerging. The development in 2001 primarily relates to the 2000
accident year, while the majority of the 2000 unfavorable development
related to the 1999 accident year. The Company conducts extensive
reviews each month on portions of its business to help ensure that the
Company is meeting its objective of always having reserves that are
adequate, with minimal variation. Results would differ if different 
assumptions were made. See the Critical Accounting Policies section
of Management’s Discussion and Analysis for a discussion of the 
effect of changing estimates. In July 2002, the Company released its
Report on Loss Reserving Practices, via Form 8-K, which provides a
detailed discussion of the Company’s loss reserving practices.

Because the Company is primarily an insurer of motor vehicles, it
has limited exposure as an insurer of environmental, asbestos and
general liability claims. The Company has established reserves for
these exposures, in amounts which it believes to be adequate based
on information currently known. These exposures are not expected
to have a material effect on the Company’s liquidity, financial condi-
tion, cash flows or results of operations.

Policy acquisition costs and other underwriting expenses as a 
percentage of premiums earned were 22% in both 2002 and 2001,
and 21% in 2000. Policy acquisition costs are amortized over the 
policy period in which the related premiums are earned (see Note 
1 – Reporting and Accounting Policies). The increase in “other 
underwriting expenses,” as shown in the income statement, in 2002
was primarily a result of growth, the settlement of class-action 
lawsuits and an increase in payouts under the Company’s incentive
compensation programs resulting from improved operating per-
formance. The Agent channel expense ratio, which includes the set-
tlement of the alternative commission programs lawsuits (see Note
11 – Litigation), is in line with the Company’s expectations. The Com-
pany continues to see improvement in the Direct business expense
ratio, which is primarily the result of an increase in the conversion
rates. The Company’s advertising costs in 2002 were approximately
the same as 2001, with the Company experiencing greater efficiency
and yield. Based on this experience, the Company believes it can 
effectively leverage an anticipated increase in advertising spending
in 2003.

During 2002, the Company incurred $21.2 million of guaranty fund
exposure, compared to $14.6 million in 2001 and $2.0 million in 2000.
The 2002 expense was primarily related to the Reliance Insurance
Company and Aries Insurance Company insolvencies; 2001 prima-
rily related to Reliance. The Company believes that any assessment
for known insolvencies in excess of its current reserves will not 
materially affect the Company’s financial condition, cash flows or 
results of operations.

The Company is named as a defendant in a number of putative class
action lawsuits, such as those alleging damages as a result of the
Company’s use of after-market parts, total loss evaluation methodol-
ogy, use of credit in underwriting, charging betterment in first party
physical damage claims, using preferred provider rates for payment
of personal injury protection claims, worker classification issues, use
of third-party vendors to analyze the propriety of payment of medical

bills, offering alternative commission programs or the alleged diminu-
tion of value to vehicles which are involved in accidents, and cases
challenging other aspects of the Company’s claims and marketing
practices and business operations. Other insurance companies face
many of these same issues. During 2002, the Company settled sev-
eral long-standing class-action lawsuits relating to diminution of value,
handling of betterment in claim settlements, use of alternative agent
commissions programs and a California-specific labor classification
claim. See Note 11 – Litigation for a more detailed discussion.

Critical Accounting Policies The Company is required to make 
certain estimates and assumptions when preparing its financial
statements and accompanying notes in conformity with GAAP. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates in a variety of areas.
The two areas that the Company views as most critical with respect
to the application of estimates and assumptions are its method of 
determining impairments in its investment portfolio and the estab-
lishment of its loss reserves. 

Other than Temporary Impairment – SFAS 115, “Accounting for
Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities” and SAB 59, “Non-
current Marketable Equity Securities” requires companies to perform
periodic reviews of individual securities in its investment portfolio to
determine whether a decline in the value of a security is other than
temporary. A review for other than temporary impairment (OTI) 
requires companies to make certain forward-looking assumptions 
regarding the probability, extent and timing of a valuation recovery,
the materiality of the decline and its effect on the financial statements,
and the Company’s ability and intent to hold the security. The scope
of this review is broad and requires a forward-looking assessment of
the fundamental characteristics of a security, as well as market-
related prospects of the issuer and its industry.

The Company assesses valuation declines to determine the extent
to which such changes are attributable to (i) fundamental factors spe-
cific to the issuer, such as financial conditions, business prospects
or other factors or (ii) market-related factors, such as interest rates or
equity market declines. This evaluation reflects the Company’s esti-
mates of current conditions as well as predictions of uncertain future
events that may have a material impact on the financial statements
related to security valuation.

For fixed income investments with unrealized losses due to 
market or industry-related declines, the declines are not deemed to
qualify as other than temporary where the Company has the intent
and ability to hold the investment for the period of time necessary to
recover a significant portion of the investment’s original principal and
interest obligation. The Company’s policy for equity securities with
market-related declines is to recognize impairment losses on indi-
vidual securities with losses that are not reasonably expected to be
recovered under historical market conditions when the security has
been in a loss position for three consecutive quarters.

When persuasive evidence exists that causes the Company to 
evaluate a decline in market value to be other than temporary, the
Company reduces the book value of such security to its current 
market value, recognizing the decline as a realized loss in the income
statement. All other unrealized gains or losses are reflected in share-
holders’ equity. Senior management provides a summary of the 
Company’s OTI review to the audit committee of the Company’s
Board of Directors.
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Total Gross Percent Decline of Investment Value

Unrealized
Total Portfolio Losses > 15% > 25% > 35% > 45%

Unrealized Loss for 1 Quarter $ 12.8 $ 9.6 $ 1.5 $ — $ —
Unrealized Loss for 2 Quarters 35.6 14.6 6.8 3.4 .2
Unrealized Loss for 3 Quarters 49.1 36.4 9.6 — —
Unrealized Loss for > 3 Quarters 63.0 42.7 27.0 — —

Total $ 160.5 $ 103.3 $ 44.9 $ 3.4 $ .2

For example, if the Company decided to write down all securities in an unrealized loss position in excess of three quarters where the securi-
ties decline in value exceeded 15%, the Company would recognize an additional $42.7 million of OTI losses in the income statement. These
OTI losses would decrease to $27.0 million if the threshold for market decline was greater than 25%.

Since total unrealized losses are already a component of the Company’s shareholders’ equity, any recognition of additional OTI losses
would have no effect on the Company’s comprehensive income or book value.

Loss and LAE Reserves – Loss and loss adjustment expense (LAE) 
reserves represent the Company’s best estimate of its ultimate 
liability for losses and LAE that occurred prior to the end of any given
accounting period but have not yet been paid. At December 31, 2002,
the Company had $3.8 billion of gross loss and LAE reserves, which
represents management’s best estimate of ultimate loss. As a result of
the detailed product review processes the Company performs 
(discussed below), the Company does not develop aggregate coun-
trywide ranges for its loss reserves. The Company’s carried reserve 
balance inherently assumes an increase in the loss and LAE severity for
both personal auto liability and commercial auto liability, which repre-
sent over 95% of the Company’s total reserves. These estimates are
influenced by many variables that are difficult to quantify, such as 
medical costs, jury awards, etc., which will influence the final amount
of the claim settlement. That, coupled with changes to internal claims
practices, changes in the legal environment and state regulatory re-
quirements, requires significant judgment in the reserve setting process. 

The Company reviews its reserves at a combined state, product
and line coverage level (the “products”) on an annual, semiannual or
quarterly time frame depending on size of the products or emerging
issues relating to the products. By reviewing the reserves at such a
detailed level, the Company has the ability to identify and measure
variances in trend by state, product and line coverage that would not
otherwise be seen on a consolidated basis. The Company’s actuar-
ial department reviews the results of six different estimation meth-
ods, three based on paid data and three based on incurred data, to
determine if a reserve change is required. In the event of a wide vari-
ation between results generated by the different projections, the ac-
tuarial group will further analyze the data using additional techniques. 

In analyzing the ultimate accident year loss experience, the Com-
pany’s actuarial area reviews in detail the frequency (number of losses
per earned car years), severity (dollars of loss per each claim), and
the average premium (dollars of premium per earned car year). The

loss ratio, a primary measure of loss experience, is equal to the fre-
quency times severity divided by the average premium. The average
premium for personal and commercial auto businesses are known
and therefore are not estimated. The projection of frequency for these
lines of business is generally very stable because injured parties 
report their claims in a reasonably short time period. The actual 
frequency experienced will vary depending on the change in mix by
class of drivers written by the Company, but the accuracy of the 
projected level is generally reliable. The severity experienced by the
Company, which is more difficult to estimate, is affected by changes
in underlying costs, such as medical costs, jury verdicts, etc. In 
addition, severity will change relative to the change in the Company’s
limit profile. 

During 2002, the Company experienced exceptional growth which
creates additional uncertainty in estimating the ultimate loss costs.
The contributing factors of this potential risk are the change in the
Company’s limit mix and mix of business by state or jurisdiction. To
address this risk of uncertainty, the Company’s actuarial area 
expanded their scope of reserve reviews by approximately 50% to
accommodate the shift to high and low policy limits within the 
reserving product level. Even though this increased focus on needed
reserves by policy limit was part of the process for the personal auto
business, even more attention was given to studies regarding losses
by policy limit for the commercial auto business, as the average limit
of this business is much higher than personal auto and has been 
increasing over the last few years.

The Company’s goal is to ensure total reserves are adequate to
cover all loss costs while sustaining minimal variation from the time
reserves are initially established until losses are fully developed. Dur-
ing 2002, the Company made no significant change to the estimate of
loss reserves recorded in prior years. The following table shows how
the Company has performed against this goal over the last ten years.

As of December 31, 2002, the Company’s total portfolio had $160.5
million in gross unrealized losses, compared to $95.9 million in gross
unrealized losses in 2001. The increase during 2002 was the result of
continued equity market declines, as evidenced by the Russell 1000
Index return of (21.7)%. The year-end unrealized losses were miti-
gated by the fact that, during the year, the Company recognized
$202.1 million of OTI and additional gross realized losses of $83.2
million from security sales, as well as from the positive effect of 
declining interest rates on the Company’s bond portfolio. 

The following table stratifies the gross unrealized losses in the Com-
pany’s portfolio at December 31, 2002, by duration in a loss position
and magnitude of the loss as a percentage of book value. The indi-
vidual amounts represent the additional OTI the Company could have
recognized in the income statement if its policy for market-related 
declines was different than that stated above.

(millions)
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For the years ended
December 31, 1992 1993 19943 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002

Loss and LAE 
reserves1 $956.4 $1,012.4 $1,098.7 $1,314.4 $1,532.9 $1,867.5 $1,945.8 $2,200.2 $2,785.3 $3,069.7 $3,632.1

Re-estimated
reserves as of:

One year later 857.9 869.9 1,042.1 1,208.6 1,429.6 1,683.3 1,916.0 2,276.0 2,686.3 3,073.2
Two years later 765.5 837.8 991.7 1,149.5 1,364.5 1,668.5 1,910.6 2,285.4 2,708.3
Three years later 737.4 811.3 961.2 1,118.6 1,432.3 1,673.1 1,917.3 2,277.7
Four years later 725.2 794.6 940.6 1,137.7 1,451.0 1,669.2 1,908.2
Five years later 717.3 782.9 945.5 1,153.3 1,445.1 1,664.7
Six years later 711.1 780.1 952.7 1,150.1 1,442.0
Seven years later 709.2 788.6 952.6 1,146.2
Eight years later 714.6 787.5 949.7
Nine years later 713.3 787.0
Ten years later 713.0

Cumulative development:
conservative/(deficient) $ 243.4 $ 225.4 $ 149.0 $ 168.2 $ 90.9 $ 202.8 $ 37.6 $ (77.5) $ 77.0 $(3.5)

Percentage2 25.5 22.3 13.6 12.8 5.9 10.9 1.9 (3.5) 2.8 (.1)

The chart represents the development of the property-casualty loss and LAE reserves for 1992 through 2001. The reserves are re-estimated based on experience as of 
the end of each succeeding year and are increased or decreased as more information becomes known about the frequency and severity of claims for individual years. 
The cumulative development represents the aggregate change in the estimates over all prior years. Since the characteristics of the loss reserves for both personal auto and
commercial auto are similar, the Company reports development in the aggregate rather than by segment. 
1Represents loss and LAE reserves net of reinsurance recoverables on unpaid losses at the balance sheet date. 
2Cumulative development ÷ loss and LAE reserves.
3In 1994, based on a review of its total loss reserves, the Company eliminated its $71.0 million “supplemental reserve.”

(millions)

The Company experienced continually favorable reserve develop-
ment through 1998 primarily due to the decreasing bodily injury sever-
ity. From the fourth quarter 1993 continuously through the third quarter
1998, the Company’s bodily injury severity decreased each quarter
when compared to the same quarter the prior year. This period of 
decreasing severity for the Company was not only longer than that
experienced by the industry, but also longer than any time in 
Progressive’s history. The reserves established as of the end of each
year assumed the current accident year’s severity to increase over
the prior accident year’s estimate. As the experience continued to be
evaluated at later dates, the realization of the decreased severity 
resulted in favorable reserve development. 

The Company believes that the assumption with the highest likeli-
hood of change that would materially affect the carried loss and LAE

reserves is the estimated severity for the 2002 accident year. If the Com-
pany changed its estimate of severity by 1%, the 2002 required reserves
for personal auto liability and commercial auto liability would have
changed by approximately $30 million and $4 million, respectively. 

Because the Company is primarily an insurer of motor vehicles, it
has minimal exposure as an insurer of environmental, asbestos and
general liability claims.

For a more detailed discussion on the Company’s loss reserving
practices and how loss reserves affect the Company’s financial re-
sults, see the Company’s Report on Loss Reserving Practices, which
was filed in July 2002 via Form 8-K and is available on the Company’s
Web site at progressive.com/investors. 

Safe Harbor Statement Under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995: Statements in this Annual Report that are not historical fact are 

forward-looking statements that are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that could cause actual events and results to differ materially from those

discussed herein. These risks and uncertainties include, without limitation, uncertainties related to estimates, assumptions and projections generally;

inflation and changes in economic conditions (including changes in interest rates and financial markets); the effectiveness of the Company’s advertis-

ing campaigns; the accuracy and adequacy of the Company’s pricing methodologies; pricing competition and other initiatives by competitors; ability

to obtain regulatory approval for requested rate changes and the timing thereof; legislative and regulatory developments; the outcome of litigation pend-

ing against the Company; weather conditions (including the severity and frequency of storms, hurricanes, snowfalls, hail and winter conditions); changes

in driving patterns and loss trends; acts of war and terrorist activities; court decisions and trends in litigation and health care and auto repair costs; and

other matters described from time to time by the Company in releases and publications, and in periodic reports and other documents filed with the

United States Securities and Exchange Commission. In addition, investors should be aware that generally accepted accounting principles prescribe

when a company may reserve for particular risks, including litigation exposures. Accordingly, results for a given reporting period could be significantly 

affected if and when a reserve is established for a major contingency. Reported results may therefore appear to be volatile in certain accounting periods.
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(millions–except ratios, per share amounts 
and number of people employed) 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

Insurance Companies Selected Financial 
Information and Operating Statistics—Statutory Basis

Policyholders’ surplus1 $ 3,370.2 $ 2,647.7 $ 2,177.0 $ 2,258.9 $ 2,029.9
Ratios:

Net premiums written to policyholders’ surplus 2.8 2.7 2.8 2.7 2.6

Loss and loss adjustment expense reserves 
to policyholders’ surplus 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.0 1.0

Loss and loss adjustment expense 70.9 73.6 83.2 75.0 68.5
Underwriting expense 20.4 21.1 21.0 22.1 22.4
Statutory combined ratio 91.3 94.7 104.2 97.1 90.9

Selected Consolidated Financial Information—GAAP Basis

Total revenues $ 9,294.4 $ 7,488.2 $ 6,771.0 $ 6,124.2 $ 5,292.4

Total assets 13,564.4 11,122.4 10,051.6 9,704.7 8,463.1

Total shareholders’ equity2 3,768.0 3,250.7 2,869.8 2,752.8 2,557.1

Common Shares outstanding 218.0 220.3 220.6 219.3 217.6

Common Share price
High $ 60.49 $ 50.60 $ 37.00 $ 58.08 $ 57.33
Low 44.75 27.38 15.00 22.83 31.33
Close3 49.63 49.77 34.54 24.38 56.46

Market capitalization $ 10,819.3 $ 10,958.6 $ 7,616.8 $ 5,345.4 $ 12,279.7

Book value per Common Share2 $ 17.28 $ 14.76 $ 13.01 $ 12.55 $ 11.75

Return on average common shareholders’ equity4 19.3% 13.5% 1.7% 10.9% 19.3%

Debt outstanding $ 1,489.0 $ 1,095.7 $ 748.8 $ 1,048.6 $ 776.6

Ratios:
Debt to total capital 28% 25% 21% 28% 23%
Earnings to fixed charges5 13.2x 10.7x 1.3x 5.7x 10.2x
Price to earnings6 15 23 138 20 28
Price to book 2.9 3.4 2.7 1.9 4.8

Net premiums written growth 30% 17% 1% 16% 14%

GAAP underwriting margin2 7.6% 4.8% (4.4)% 1.7% 8.4%

Number of people employed 22,974 20,442 19,490 18,753 15,735

All share and per share amounts were adjusted for the April 22, 2002, 3-for-1 stock split.
1During 1994, the Company began accruing salvage and subrogation recoverables. 
2In 1994, the $71.0 million “supplemental reserve” was eliminated, increasing book value per share $.21, under-
writing profit margin 3.2% and shareholders’ equity $46.1 million. 

3Represents the closing price at December 31. 
4Net income minus preferred share dividends ÷ average common shareholders’ equity. 
51995 and prior represents the ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and preferred share dividends.
6Represents the closing stock price ÷ operating earnings per share (a non-GAAP measure). 

Ten Year Summary — Financial Highlights
(unaudited — not covered by report of independent accountants)

The Progressive Corporation and Subsidiaries
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(millions–except ratios, per share amounts 
and number of people employed) 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993

Insurance Companies Selected Financial 
Information and Operating Statistics—Statutory Basis

Policyholders’ surplus1 $ 1,722.9 $ 1,292.4 $ 1,055.1 $ 945.1 $ 701.9
Ratios:

Net premiums written to policyholders’ surplus 2.7 2.7 2.8 2.6 2.6

Loss and loss adjustment expense reserves 
to policyholders’ surplus 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.5

Loss and loss adjustment expense 71.1 70.2 71.6 64.2 62.6
Underwriting expense 20.7 19.8 21.4 22.4 25.4
Statutory combined ratio 91.8 90.0 93.0 86.6 88.0

Selected Consolidated Financial Information—GAAP Basis

Total revenues $ 4,608.2 $ 3,478.4 $ 3,011.9 $ 2,415.3 $ 1,954.8

Total assets 7,559.6 6,183.9 5,352.5 4,675.1 4,011.3

Total shareholders’ equity2 2,135.9 1,676.9 1,475.8 1,151.9 997.9

Common Shares outstanding 216.9 214.5 216.3 213.6 216.3

Common Share price
High $ 40.29 $ 24.08 $ 16.50 $ 13.50 $ 15.38
Low 20.50 13.46 11.58 9.25 8.88
Close3 39.96 22.46 16.29 11.67 13.50

Market capitalization $ 8,667.0 $ 4,817.3 $ 3,523.9 $ 2,492.0 $ 2,920.1

Book value per Common Share2 $ 9.85 $ 7.82 $ 6.44 $ 4.99 $ 4.21

Return on average common shareholders’ equity4 20.9% 20.5% 19.6% 27.4% 36.0%

Debt outstanding $ 775.9 $ 775.7 $ 675.9 $ 675.6 $ 477.1

Ratios:
Debt to total capital 27% 32% 31% 37% 32%
Earnings to fixed charges5 9.2x 7.7x 5.6x 6.1x 7.1x
Price to earnings6 27 16 17 13 15
Price to book 4.1 2.9 2.5 2.3 3.2

Net premiums written growth 36% 18% 19% 35% 25%

GAAP underwriting margin2 6.6% 8.5% 5.7% 11.5% 10.7%

Number of people employed 14,126 9,557 8,025 7,544 6,101
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Ten Year Summary—GAAP Consolidated Operating Results
(unaudited — not covered by report of independent accountants)

(millions–except per share amounts) 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

Direct premiums written:
Personal Lines $ 8,431.1 $ 6,485.1 $ 5,773.2 $ 5,799.4 $ 4,987.1
Commercial Auto Business 1,004.3 665.7 442.2 321.4 265.2
Other businesses 230.3 228.4 186.7 184.5 199.0

Total direct premiums written 9,665.7 7,379.2 6,402.1 6,305.3 5,451.3
Reinsurance assumed .1 .1 — — —
Reinsurance ceded (213.8) (119.2) (206.0) (180.6) (151.6)

Net premiums written 9,452.0 7,260.1 6,196.1 6,124.7 5,299.7
Net change in unearned premiums reserve1 (568.5) (98.3) 152.3 (441.1) (351.7)

Premiums earned 8,883.5 7,161.8 6,348.4 5,683.6 4,948.0
Expenses:

Losses and loss adjustment expenses2 6,299.1 5,264.1 5,279.4 4,256.4 3,376.3
Policy acquisition costs 1,031.6 864.9 788.0 745.0 659.9
Other underwriting expenses 874.2 686.9 559.3 583.8 495.8

Total underwriting expenses 8,204.9 6,815.9 6,626.7 5,585.2 4,532.0
Underwriting profit (loss) before taxes 678.6 345.9 (278.3) 98.4 416.0
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 237.5 121.1 (97.4) 34.4 145.6
Underwriting profit (loss) after taxes 441.1 224.8 (180.9) 64.0 270.4
Service operations profit (loss) after taxes 8.0 3.2 (.6) 4.3 4.8

449.1 228.0 (181.5) 68.3 275.2
Investment income after taxes 324.4 296.1 278.3 249.6 221.3
Net realized gains (losses) on securities after taxes (51.1) (72.7) 11.0 30.7 7.4
Interest expense after taxes (48.5) (33.9) (50.6) (49.7) (39.7)
Nonrecurring items after taxes3 — — (4.2) — —
Other income after taxes4 — — — 3.4 —
Net expenses after taxes5 (6.6) (6.1) (6.9) (7.1) (7.5)
Net income $ 667.3 $ 411.4 $ 46.1 $ 295.2 $ 456.7
Items to reconcile net income to operating income:
Net realized (gains) losses on securities after taxes 51.1 72.7 (11.0) (30.7) (7.4)
Nonrecurring items after taxes:

Nonunderwriting3 — — 4.2 — —
Other income4 — — — (3.4) —
Underwriting2,8 — 1.4 16.1 5.6 —

Operating income6 $ 718.4 $ 485.5 $ 55.4 $ 266.7 $ 449.3
Per share7

Net income $ 2.99 $ 1.83 $ .21 $ 1.32 $ 2.04
Operating income6 3.22 2.16 .25 1.19 2.01
Dividends .096 .093 .090 .087 .083

Average equivalent shares
Basic 219.0 221.0 219.6 218.7 217.4
Diluted 223.2 225.2 223.0 223.9 224.1

All share and per share amounts were adjusted for the April 22, 2002, 3-for-1 stock split.
1Amount represents change in unearned premiums reserve less change in prepaid reinsurance premiums.
2In 1994, the “supplemental reserve” was eliminated, resulting in a one-time decrease to losses and loss adjustment expenses of $71.0 million, or $.21 per share. 
32000 reflects a foreign currency translation loss; 1993 reflects a charge on debt extinguishments.
41999 reflects a gain on the sale of the corporate aircraft.
5Reflects investment expenses after taxes and other tax adjustments.
6Defined as net income excluding net realized gains/losses on securities and nonrecurring items. This is a non-GAAP disclosure. 
7Presented on a diluted basis. In 1997, the Company adopted SFAS 128, “Earnings Per Share,” and, as a result, restated prior periods per share amounts, if applicable. 

The Progressive Corporation and Subsidiaries
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(millions–except per share amounts) 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993

Direct premiums written:
Personal Lines $ 4,355.9 $ 3,165.4 $ 2,644.6 $ 2,181.7 $ 1,548.9
Commercial Auto Business 253.5 229.9 210.5 183.7 165.9
Other businesses 215.8 243.1 213.8 279.7 251.6

Total direct premiums written 4,825.2 3,638.4 3,068.9 2,645.1 1,966.4
Reinsurance assumed — 3.8 .1 2.9 9.2
Reinsurance ceded (160.1) (200.5) (156.2) (190.8) (156.4)

Net premiums written 4,665.1 3,441.7 2,912.8 2,457.2 1,819.2
Net change in unearned premiums reserve1 (475.6) (242.4) (185.6) (266.1) (150.5)

Premiums earned 4,189.5 3,199.3 2,727.2 2,191.1 1,668.7
Expenses:

Losses and loss adjustment expenses2 2,967.5 2,236.1 1,943.8 1,397.3 1,028.0
Policy acquisition costs 607.8 482.6 459.6 391.5 311.6
Other underwriting expenses 336.0 208.5 167.2 150.8 151.3

Total underwriting expenses 3,911.3 2,927.2 2,570.6 1,939.6 1,490.9
Underwriting profit (loss) before taxes 278.2 272.1 156.6 251.5 177.8
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 97.4 95.2 54.8 88.0 62.2
Underwriting profit (loss) after taxes 180.8 176.9 101.8 163.5 115.6
Service operations profit (loss) after taxes .9 2.8 5.6 6.5 4.4

181.7 179.7 107.4 170.0 120.0
Investment income after taxes 205.3 175.6 156.2 131.2 107.1
Net realized gains (losses) on securities after taxes 64.0 4.6 30.4 15.5 70.1
Interest expense after taxes (42.0) (40.0) (37.1) (35.9) (25.8)
Nonrecurring items after taxes3 — — — — (2.6)
Other income after taxes4 — — — — —
Net expenses after taxes5 (9.0) (6.2) (6.4) (6.5) (1.5)
Net income $ 400.0 $ 313.7 $ 250.5 $ 274.3 $ 267.3
Items to reconcile net income to operating income:
Net realized (gains) losses on securities after taxes (64.0) (4.6) (30.4) (15.5) (70.1)
Nonrecurring items after taxes:

Nonunderwriting3 — — — — 2.6
Other income4 — — — — —
Underwriting2,8 — — — (46.1) (2.5)

Operating income6 $ 336.0 $ 309.1 $ 220.1 $ 212.7 $ 197.3
Per share7

Net income $ 1.77 $ 1.38 $ 1.09 $ 1.20 $ 1.20
Operating income6 1.49 1.379 .95 .92 .87
Dividends .080 .077 .073 .070 .067

Average equivalent shares
Basic 216.0 214.8 215.4 214.8 207.9
Diluted 225.9 222.6 222.6 222.0 215.4

8Other nonrecurring items consist of the following pretax items: 
2001: $2.1 million of severance and other costs related to the Company’s reduction in force in New York.
2000: $20.0 million accrual related to the estimated cost of terminating a strategic alliance relationship; $3.2 million additional expense
associated with the termination of the Company’s defined benefit pension plan; and $1.7 million of severance costs associated with the
Company’s reorganization at the general manager level.
1999: $7.5 million additional expenses associated with previous advertising commitments that will no longer be realized due to changes in
marketing strategy; and $1.2 million reserve for the wind-down of the Company’s Canadian operations.
1993: $.9 million charge from the early adoption of SFAS 112, “Employer’s Accounting for Postemployment Benefits;” a $1.5 million bene-
fit from the curtailment of the defined benefit pension plan; and $2.1 million benefit from the retroactive tax impact of the Omnibus Budget
Reconciliation Act of 1993

9Excludes $.01 per share associated with the excess preferred stock liquidation price over the carrying value at the date of redemption.
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Quantitative Market Risk Disclosures
(unaudited — not covered by report of independent accountants)

Quantitative market risk disclosures are only presented for market risk categories when risk is considered material. Materiality is determined
based on the fair value of the financial instruments at December 31, 2002, and the potential for near-term losses from reasonably possible
near-term changes in market rates or prices.

Other Than Trading Financial Instruments

Financial instruments subject to interest rate risk were:

Market Value

-200 bps -100 bps +100 bps +200 bps
(millions) Change Change Actual Change Change

U.S. Government obligations $ 1,730.5 $ 1,693.4 $ 1,646.9 $ 1,602.5 $ 1,560.1
State and local government obligations 2,170.2 2,070.4 1,976.0 1,888.2 1,806.4
Asset-backed securities 2,666.4 2,610.5 2,550.4 2,485.7 2,408.4
Corporate and other debt securities 1,670.6 1,604.5 1,539.2 1,477.9 1,420.5
Preferred stocks 694.8 676.4 656.7 637.6 619.3
Short-term investments 567.8 567.8 567.8 567.8 567.8
Balance as of December 31, 2002 $ 9,500.3 $ 9,223.0 $ 8,937.0 $ 8,659.7 $ 8,382.5
Balance as of December 31, 2001 $ 7,480.7 $ 7,208.6 $ 6,940.4 $ 6,679.4 $ 6,427.2

Exposure to risk is represented in terms of changes in fair value due to
selected hypothetical movements in market rates. Bonds and 
preferred stocks are individually priced to yield to the worst case 
scenario. State and local government obligations, including lease deals
and super sinkers, are assumed to hold their prepayment patterns.

Asset-backed securities are priced assuming deal specific prepayment
scenarios, considering the deal structure, prepayment penalties, yield
maintenance agreements and the underlying collateral. Over 95% of
the preferred stocks have mechanisms that are expected to provide
an opportunity to liquidate at par.

Financial instruments subject to equity market risk were:

Hypothetical Market Changes

Market
(millions) Value +10% -10%

Common equities as of December 31, 2002 $ 1,347.3 $ 1,482.0 $ 1,212.6
Common equities as of December 31, 20011 $ 1,285.9 $ 1,414.5 $ 1,157.3

1Amount excludes $50.1 million of term trust certificates.

The model represents the estimated value of the Company’s 
common equity portfolio given a +/- 10% change in the market, based
on the common stock portfolio’s weighted average beta of 1.0. The
beta is derived from recent historical experience, using the S&P 
500 as the market surrogate. The historical relationship of the 
common stock portfolio’s beta to the S&P 500 is not necessarily 

indicative of future correlation, as individual company or industry 
factors may affect price movement. Betas are not available for all 
securities. In such cases, the change in market value reflects a direct
+/- 10% change; the number of securities without betas is approxi-
mately 5%. 

The Progressive Corporation and Subsidiaries
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As an additional supplement to the sensitivity analysis, the Company is presenting summarized estimates of the Value-at-Risk (VaR) of the
fixed-income and equity portfolios for the following quarterly periods:

December 31, September 30, June 30, March 31, December 31,
(millions) 2002 2002 2002 2002 2001

Fixed-income portfolio $ (130.9) $ (160.2) $ (114.6) $ (159.3) $ (182.8)
(1.5)% (1.9)% (1.5)% (2.2)% (2.6)%

Equity portfolio $ (146.9) $ (154.7) $ (107.6) $ (95.0) $ (101.3)
(10.9)% (12.7)% (8.4)% (7.3)% (7.9)%

Total portfolio $ (99.8) $ (121.8) $ (120.2) $ (169.5) $ (218.3)
(1.0)% (1.3)% (1.3)% (2.0)% (2.7)%

The model results represent the maximum expected loss in a one
month period at a 95% confidence level. The results are based on
10,000 paths generated using Monte Carlo methodology. Fixed-
income securities are priced off simulated term structures, capturing
the path-dependency of instruments with embedded options. 
Equities are priced off a 10 factor model; risk factors include both
macroeconomics and industry segment exposures. The variance/
covariance matrix is estimated using the last two years (rolling) and

is exponentially-weighted, making the model especially sensitive to
recent volatility. The VaR of the total investment portfolio is less than
the sum of the two components (fixed income and equity) due to the
benefit of diversification.

The VaR exposure of the total investment portfolio decreased 170
basis points from December 31, 2001 to December 31, 2002, prima-
rily reflecting the reduction in the duration of the fixed-income port-
folio and a reduction in the volatility of market interest rates.

Trading Financial Instruments At December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001, the Company did not have any trading securities. During 2002
and 2001, net activity of trading securities was not material to the Company’s financial position, cash flows or results of operations. For 2002
and 2001, the Company realized $0 and $6.5 million, respectively, of net losses on trading securities. 
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Incentive Compensation Plans
(unaudited — not covered by report of independent accountants)

The Company believes that equity compensation awards are a 
key form of long-term compensation. In 1989, the Company began
awarding non-qualified stock options (NQSO) to key employees and 
directors of the Company as an equity component of the total 
incentive compensation plan. Beginning January 1, 2003, the Com-
pany will discontinue granting NQSOs in favor of providing equity
compensation in the form of restricted stock. After considering 
various alternatives, the Company believes that restricted stock more
closely aligns management’s interest with that of shareholders. 

The Company recognizes investor concerns over the effect of 
equity awards and the lack of clarity on shareholder value. Some 
advocates prefer the transparency of cash compensation, but this
comes with the cost of reducing senior management and shareholder
alignment. The Company believes a solution is to monitize the cost
of equity compensation through its’ commitment to neutralize 
dilution from stock options exercises and restricted stock grants
through stock repurchases.

As of January 1, 2003, there were 12.3 million options outstanding
with 6.7 million options currently eligible for exercise. The final expi-
ration date for these outstanding options is December 31, 2011. The
Company anticipates that approximately 10.9 million of the currently

outstanding options will have been exercised by the expiration date.
As previously stated, it is the Company’s policy to eliminate dilution
from the exercise of employee options through periodic share repur-
chases. On January 1, 2001, the date the repurchase policy was 
established, Common Shares outstanding were 220.6 million, on a
split-adjusted basis, and options outstanding were 14.0 million. These
amounts became the benchmarks for share management purposes.
Due to capital opportunities, the Company’s view of future operations
or market conditions, share repurchases may exceed the expected
number of options to be exercised in that annual period. Any share
repurchases in excess of the current year exercises will be carried
forward and applied against future option exercises until the total 
dilutive obligation has been satisfied. Any shortfall of repurchases
below the cumulative total option exercises will be acquired in the 
following year. When a carryforward balance exists, the Company 
will repurchase a minimum of 50% of the anticipated current year 
exercises.

The following NQSO grants were outstanding as of January 1, 
2003. It should be noted that these amounts include .4 million of 
Directors’ NQSOs and 1.8 million of options that became exercisable
on January 1, 2003.

Expiration Date Average Strike Options Forecasted
December 31, Price Granted Exercisable Outstanding1 Exercises2

2003 $ 10.35 3.5 .9 .9 .9
2004 12.76 2.7 1.0 1.0 1.0
2005 15.84 2.6 1.3 1.3 1.3
2006 23.28 2.2 1.1 1.1 1.1
2007 41.54 1.4 1.0 1.0 1.0
2008 46.38 1.5 .1 1.1 1.0
2009 19.72 3.3 1.0 2.8 2.3
2010 30.89 2.1 .3 1.9 1.4
2011 52.17 1.2 — 1.2 .9

Total 20.5 6.7 12.3 10.9

1Represents the total number of outstanding options, including vested and unvested issues, and in-the-money or out-of-the-money options.
2The difference between options currently outstanding and total projected exercises represents the Company’s historical experience of option cancellations. Actual exercises
can and will vary based on a number of factors including variation in the market price of Progressive stock. Forecasted results are based on historical experience and reflect
the market and business conditions that existed at the time of issuance and exercise of the respective options.

(millions, except prices)

The Progressive Corporation and Subsidiaries
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Following is the Company’s anticipated rate of option exercises over the remaining life of the option plan. 

Forecasted Average 
Projected Year of Exercise Exercises Strike Price

2003 2.2 $ 17.75
2004 1.9 22.49
2005 1.8 24.19
2006 1.4 29.73
2007 1.2 35.24
2008 .9 33.70
2009 .9 26.98
2010 .4 36.64
2011 .2 52.17

Remaining obligation 10.9 $ 26.54

The Company expects to repurchase shares to offset its remaining obligation during the expected future life of the options outstanding.

During 2002 and 2001, the following option exercises and share repurchases occurred:

(millions) Cumulative 2002 2001

Options outstanding: Beginning of year 14.0 13.1 14.0
Granted 3.3 1.2 2.1
Exercised (4.0) (1.5) (2.5)
Cancelled (1.0) (.5) (.5)

Options outstanding: End of year 12.3 12.3 13.1

Repurchases for current year exercises 4.0 1.5 2.5
Excess repurchases 2.4 2.3 .1
Total repurchases 6.4 3.8 2.6

as a % of total obligation1 43%

Cumulative carryforward (shortfall) 2.4

as a % of remaining obligation 22%

1Total obligation represents the remaining share repurchase obligation (10.9 million shares) plus the shares exercised from January 1, 2001 through December 31, 2002
(4.0 million shares). 

(millions, except prices)
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Direct Premiums Written by State
(unaudited — not covered by report of independent accountants)

(millions) 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

Florida $ 1,045.4 10.8% $ 799.6 10.8% $ 773.2 12.1% $ 895.6 14.2% $ 784.4 14.4%
Texas 861.4 8.9 572.5 7.8 532.6 8.3 557.6 8.8 518.6 9.5
New York 672.5 7.0 560.6 7.6 425.6 6.6 600.4 9.5 522.2 9.6
Ohio 620.2 6.4 567.2 7.7 563.2 8.8 528.1 8.4 447.7 8.2
California 575.1 6.0 416.5 5.6 376.6 5.9 416.0 6.6 343.2 6.3
Pennsylvania 492.2 5.1 368.4 5.0 312.3 4.9 322.3 5.1 292.3 5.4
Georgia 486.1 5.0 405.3 5.5 368.6 5.8 301.9 4.8 277.8 5.1
All other 4,912.8 50.8 3,689.1 50.0 3,050.0 47.6 2,683.4 42.6 2,265.1 41.5

Total $ 9,665.7 100.0% $ 7,379.2 100.0% $ 6,402.1 100.0% $ 6,305.3 100.0% $ 5,451.3 100.0%

Quarterly Financial and Common Share Data
(unaudited — not covered by report of independent accountants)

Net Income Reconciling items Operating
(Loss) (after tax) Income (Loss)1 Stock Price2

Net realized Non-
Operating Per (gains) losses recurring Per Rate of Dividends

Quarter Revenues3 Share4 Total on Securities Items Total Share4 High Low Close Return5 Per Share

2002

1 $ 1,975.3 $ .78 $ 176.2 $ 9.6 $ — $ 185.8 $ .83 $ 55.80 $ 46.75 $ 55.54 $ .023
2 2,144.8 .71 160.4 2.0 — 162.4 .72 60.49 54.64 57.85 .023
3 2,325.7 .80 178.5 15.4 — 193.9 .87 57.77 44.75 50.63 .025
4 2,472.0 .69 152.2 24.1 — 176.3 .79 58.30 48.79 49.63 .025

$ 8,917.8 $ 2.99 $ 667.3 $ 51.1 $ — $ 718.4 $3.22 $ 60.49 $ 44.75 $ 49.63 (.1)% $ .096

2001

1 $ 1,678.8 $ .39 $ 86.6 $ 1.7 $ — $ 88.3 $ .39 $ 34.49 $ 27.38 $ 32.35 $ .023
2 1,761.7 .46 103.7 1.9 1.4 107.0 .47 45.59 31.20 45.06 .023
3 1,839.7 .43 96.4 54.1 — 150.5 .67 45.32 38.20 44.63 .023
4 1,906.3 .56 124.7 15.0 — 139.7 .62 50.60 43.62 49.77 .023

$ 7,186.5 $ 1.83 $ 411.4 $ 72.7 $ 1.4 $ 485.5 $2.16 $ 50.60 $ 27.38 $ 49.77 44.1% $ .093

2000

1 $ 1,526.2 $ (.21) $ (46.6) $ 10.0 $ — $ (36.6) $ (.17) $ 28.58 $ 15.00 $ 25.35 $ .022
2 1,584.9 (.06) (14.1) 17.0 1.1 4.0 .02 33.33 20.00 24.67 .022
3 1,620.5 .26 58.8 (20.9) — 37.9 .17 28.46 20.75 27.29 .023
4 1,637.3 .21 48.0 (17.1) 19.2 50.1 .22 37.00 23.21 34.54 .023

$ 6,368.9 $ .21 $ 46.1 $ (11.0) $ 20.3 $ 55.4 $ .25 $ 37.00 $ 15.00 $ 34.54 42.3% $ .090

All per share amounts and stock prices were adjusted for the April 22, 2002, 3-for-1 stock split.
1Defined as net income excluding net realized gains/losses on securities and nonrecurring items. This is a non-GAAP disclosure. See Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis for a description of the nonrecurring items.

2Prices as reported on the consolidated transaction reporting system. The Company’s Common Shares are listed on the New York Stock Exchange. 
3Represents premiums earned plus service revenues.
4Presented on a diluted basis. The sum may not equal the total because the average equivalent shares differ in the periods. 
5Represents annual rate of return, including quarterly dividend reinvestment.

(millions, except per share amounts)
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Directors

Milton N. Allen1,2

Consultant, Director
and Trustee,
Profit and Not-for-profit
Organizations

B. Charles Ames1

Partner,
Clayton, Dubilier & Rice, Inc.
(investment banking)

Charles A. Davis3,5

Chairman and 
Chief Executive Officer, 
MMC Capital, Inc.
(private equity investing)

Stephen R. Hardis2,4,5

Chairman of the Board,
Axcelis Technologies, Inc.
(manufacturing)

Bernadine P. Healy, M.D.
Medical & Science Columnist,
U.S. News & World Report
(publishing)
formerly President and 
Chief Executive Officer, 
American Red Cross
(emergency services)

Janet Hill3

Vice President,
Alexander & Associates, Inc.
(management consulting)

Jeffrey D. Kelly4

Executive Vice President 
and Chief Financial Officer,
National City Corporation
(commercial banking)

Philip A. Laskawy1

Retired,
formerly Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer,
Ernst & Young LLP
(professional services)

Peter B. Lewis2

Chairman of the Board

Norman S. Matthews3,5

Consultant,
formerly President,
Federated Department
Stores, Inc.
(retailing)

Glenn M. Renwick2

President and Chief
Executive Officer

Donald B. Shackelford4

Chairman,
Fifth Third Bank, Central Ohio
(commercial banking)

1Audit Committee member
2Executive Committee member
3Compensation Committee member
4Investment and Capital 
Committee member

5Nominating and Governance
Committee member

Corporate Officers

Peter B. Lewis
Chairman

Glenn M. Renwick
President and Chief 
Executive Officer

W. Thomas Forrester
Vice President and Chief 
Financial Officer

Charles E. Jarrett
Vice President, Secretary 
and Chief Legal Officer

Jeffrey W. Basch
Vice President and Chief
Accounting Officer

Thomas A. King
Vice President

Stephen D. Peterson
Treasurer

Annual Meeting The Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be held at
the offices of The Progressive Corporation, 6671 Beta Drive, Mayfield
Village, Ohio 44143 on April 18, 2003 at 10:00 a.m. eastern time. There
were 3,590 shareholders of record on December 31, 2002.

Principal Office The principal office of The Progressive Corporation
is at 6300 Wilson Mills Road, Mayfield Village,Ohio 44143.

Web site: progressive.com

Toll-Free Telephone Number For assistance after an accident or to re-
port a claim, 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, call:1-800-PROGRESSIVE
(1-800-776-4737).

To check rates available to you from Progressive and other leading
auto insurance companies, call: 1-800-PROGRESSIVE (1-800-776-
4737) or visit: progressive.com.

For 24 Hour Policy Service, call: 1-800-PROGRESSIVE 
(1-800-776-4737)

Counsel Baker & Hostetler LLP, Cleveland, Ohio

Shareholder/Investor Relations The Progressive Corporation 
does not maintain a mailing list for distribution of shareholders’ 
reports. To view Progressive’s publicly filed documents as well as its
earnings and other releases, shareholders can access the Company’s
Web site: progressive.com/investors. 

To request copies of public financial information on the Company,
write to: The Progressive Corporation, Investor Relations, 6300
Wilson Mills Road, Box W33, Mayfield Village, Ohio 44143, e-mail: 
investor_relations@progressive.com or call: 1-440-446-7165.

For specific questions on financial information, call: 1-440-446-2851
or e-mail: investor_relations@progressive.com. 

For stock ownership account information, call: National City Bank at
1-800-622-6757.

For all other Company information, call: 1-440-461-5000 or e-mail:
webmaster@progressive.com.

Common Shares The Progressive Corporation’s Common Shares
(symbol PGR) are traded on the New York Stock Exchange. Dividends
are customarily paid on the last day of each quarter. The 2003 quar-
terly dividend record dates, subject to Board approval, are as follows:
March 14, June 13, September 12 and December 12.

Corporate Governance The Company’s Corporate Governance
guidelines and Board committee charters are available at: progres-
sive.com/investors, or may be requested in print by writing to: The
Progressive Corporation, Investor Relations, 6300 Wilson Mills Road,
Box W33, Mayfield Village, Ohio 44143.

Transfer Agent and Registrar If you have questions about a spe-
cific stock ownership account, write or call: Corporate Trust Customer
Service, National City Bank, 1900 East Ninth Street, Cleveland, Ohio
44114. Phone: 1-800-622-6757.

Charitable Contributions Progressive supports qualified not-
for-profit organizations working to reduce the human trauma and 
economic cost of auto accidents. In addition, The Progressive 
Insurance Foundation, established in December 2001, will contribute
to qualified tax-exempt organizations that are financially supported
by Progressive employees.

Interactive Annual Report The Progressive Corporation’s 2002 
Annual Report, in an interactive format, can be found at: progres-
sive.com/annualreport. 
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